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Five-Year Financial Summary

BZE+-HA=+—-HLEE
For the year ended 31 December

—EEN\F _TENF —F-FTF —FT——F ZF-=F

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
FET FET F3ET FET FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$:000 Us$'000 Us$'000
ES RESULTS
WA Revenue 37,119 47,932 58,607 74,475 93,844
EH Gross profit 26,025 32,439 38,433 44,387 54,424
BRFT1S R AT A Profit before income tax 5,952 8,903 12,785 15,148 16,566
RS Income tax expense (879) (1,523) (2,572) (2,695) (2,568)
F N4 ) Profit for the year 5,073 7,380 10,213 12,453 13,998
B+=—A=+—H
As at 31 December
—TEE)N\F —TINF —TTF —_T——F ZEB-—=F
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
FET FET F3ET FET FEx
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000
EERERE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
BB E Total assets 60,377 63,188 112,611 144,445 168,862
FEy=Kr Total liabilities (37,635) (33,232) (20,346) (45,105) (63,459)
BEFE Net assets 22,742 29,956 92,265 99,340 105,403

HE_ZZNFT_A=T—RILMEFESSF
MEENMBEENBEBEMRE  IRHEEARTN
Z-TFEMUA -+ BAIENBRER -

The results and summary of assets and liabilities for each of the two
years ended 31 December 2009 were extracted from the Company’s

prospectus dated 27 April 2010.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

LN

Total Revenue

(B&%T)
(US$ million)

2008-2012 EEFHRE
CAGR of 2008-2012

20.1.

L ON S

Revenue-Pafulin

(B&%ET)
(US$ million)

2008-2012 HEFHRR
CAGR of 2008-2012

25.1.

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

05
[

2010 2011

2012

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
557
W A-Z3F WA-RE
Revenue-Tuoshu Revenue-MMF
(BBET) (BBET)
(US$ million) (US$ million)
2008-2012 EEFHRR 2010-2012 EEFEHRR
CAGR of 2008-2012 CAGR of 2010-2012
n % 2 3 | n %
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Financial Highlights

2012 2011 Change
=F—=F S 25
EE(Txmw) - Results (US$'000):
WA Revenue 93,844 74,475 26.0%
E7 Gross profit 54,424 44,387 22.6%
4RSS Profit from operations 16,169 13,666 18.3%
& P 1S5 Az ) Profit before income tax 16,566 15,148 9.4%
NATEE ANERRT Profit attributable to owners of the
Company 13,998 12,453 12.4%
BFIgED : Profitability:
EF= Gross profit margin 58.0% 59.6% -1.6%
FarplpE Net profit margin 14.9% 16.7% -1.8%
FRREARZEF (ZEAW) Basic earnings per share (US cents) 3.4 3.0 13.3%
B#MRR(FET) ! Financial Position (US$'000):
BEE Total assets 168,862 144,445 16.9%
RABIEE AL ERS Equity attributable to owners of the
Company 105,403 99,340 6.1%
BAaG Total liabilities 63,459 45,105 40.7%
e NIRTTES Cash and bank balances 19,706 22,878 -13.9%
REBESRR Liquidity:
BN R () Current ratio (times) 1.4 2.1
NN Eln gy Net debt-to-equity ratio* 18.3% 5.5%

* FRERELE=(BE-ReREBTEK -SERHL  ~

L REIR) s

receivables)/Total equity

Net debt-to-equity ratio = (Borrowings — cash and bank balances — pledged other
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EmE
Financial Highlights

W BA
Revenue
(B&%x7T)
(US$ million)

B 2012F89iER
2012F Y A 12 1126.0%

m Strong growth in 2012
2012 Revenue up by 26.0%

2011 2012

mBRMN - ZFREENAEE B
28.9% * fHAURN A59.7%

B BRI ERRYAEE L 266% {4
AW A24.8%

m Sales of Pafulin, Tuoshu and MMF in
total up by 28.9%, accounting for
59.7% of the total revenue

m Sales of Modern Chinese medicine
extracts up by 26.6%, accounting for
24.8% of the total revenue

|_R:ERCS [ HttRRENE SR
Pafulin Other rheumatic specialty
prescription western pharmaceuticals
N =5 N RRRERRY
Tuoshu Modern Chinese medicine extracts
W %= N Ht#Em
MMF Other pharmaceuticals

8 Annual Report 2012
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B RE
Financial Highlights

W AR | kS
Net Profit Net profit margin
(B&%x7T) (%)
(US$ million)

16.7%
14.9%

2011 2012

B SREF B SBERE (FERED)
EPS DPS (interim and final)
(AL (A0
(US cents) (US cents)

2011 2012

W FRBEE W RBEE W FEE
Non-current assets Current assets Net assets
(BB=T) (BB=T) (BEZT)
(US$ million) (US$ million) (US$ million)

2011 2012

2012F FiBHE R
20125 4735 HN12.4%
MANZERDE14.9%

Steady growth in 2012
2012 Net profit up by 12.4%
Net profit margin decreased to 14.9%

4T k=
BREFIEMI3.3%

20129 B B A= 1,053
2012F E AR B EAR1.323E 1L

Net profit improved
Earnings per share up by 13.3%

2012 interim dividend of US1.05 cents
per share

2012 proposed final dividend of US1.32
cents per share

ERBVEEILINT.8% KRB &AL N
16.1%
HWEEEMN16.9%

FEEE6.1%
Non-current assets increased by 17.8%
and current assets increased by 16.1%

Total assets increased by 16.9%

Net assets increased by 6.1%
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FEWRE
Chairman’s Statement

AANERRPAEBEIERERAR(ARE DR
HMBAR(TAEIRIAEE D EFS([EF
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BE—T——F  AEEEELHERG93.88
BET REFHER26.0%  BEERMEMK
FREBEAT  FREFMIARILR12.4% » ZL
14.0B 8T - ROFEBRBERE A ERIE
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“Lansen” or the “Group”), | am pleased to present the
annual report for the financial year ended 31 December 2012 of the
Group to all shareholders of the Company.

Looking back at 2012, the Group recorded a total turnover of
approximately US$93.8 million, representing an increase of 26.0%.
Despite an upward pressure on raw material prices and costs, profit for
the year still rose 12.4% to approximately US$14.0 million. Rheumatic
specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals, the core business,
generated satisfactory sales results. In particular, the sales of the three
core products, Pafulin, Tuoshu and MMF, hit record highs.

The Company’s new quality control building is now in operation which
will further enhance the capacity and standard for quality assurance
of the Group’s products. At the same time, the Group completed the
expansion of production facilities for Pafulin and the production line
for bulk pharmaceutical extraction at the end of 2012. We expect this
expansion will greatly increase our productivity and ability to meet
future market demand for Pafulin. In addition, Loxoprofen Sodium
tablets, the non-steroidal anti-inflammatory drug (NSAID) developed
by the Company, was launched into the market in the second half of
2012, thus offering a new Lansen product to rheumatic specialists and
patients.

Outlook

In 2013, Lansen will continue to optimise its well-proven marketing
model for specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals and implement
effective marketing strategies based on the special characteristics of
its regional markets. The Group will make use of the local academic
promotional opportunities to enhance market awareness of its
products. For the team-building of its sales team, the Group will
reinforce professional marketing training to increase the marketing
knowledge and professional competence of the sales staff. In order to
meet different market and hospital demands, the Group will implement
flexible marketing strategies and accelerate the sales growth in its
existing markets and the second- and third-tier cities.

For its core market, the Group will continue to develop other disease
modifying drugs and drugs for autoimmune-related diseases through
acquisitions, agency arrangement and research and development
("R&D"). Meanwhile, the Group will consider introducing biologics
through cooperation with domestic and foreign pharmaceutical
enterprises to establish a comprehensive product portfolio for the
Company. For its existing products, the Group will actively develop their
application on other autoimmune diseases to extend their product life
cycles.
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Stephen Burnau Hunt
FiE

F& —_ET—=F=A=++H

Lansen will strengthen the product development capability of its R&D
team and speed up research progress by increasing its investment
in product development. Additional efforts will be put into the
development of new drugs to enrich the product portfolio and reinforce
the Company’s market position.

With the implementation of the New GMP standards, we plan to carry
out a large-scale upgrade of our production systems. This is a top
priority for Lansen in 2013. Thus management has set up a task force
comprising key staff from production, quality control, engineering and
administrative departments to facilitate effective decision making for
this project. External professionals will be invited to join the team when
necessary.

As announced on 6 March 2013, Lansen’s Chief Executive Officer
("CEQ") and Executive Director, Mr. Xu Jun, informed us that he will
leave the Company at the conclusion of his contract on 8 April 2013.
On behalf of the Board, | would like to thank Mr. Xu for his significant
contribution to the growth and development of Lansen and wish him
and his family well.

The Board is also pleased to welcome and congratulate Mr. Liu Bang
Min on his new appointment as CEO and Executive Director to succeed
Mr. Xu Jun. As the Company grows and matures in the very challenging
Chinese market, there will be an increased requirement for professional
and systematic management. The Board believes that Mr. Liu and his
team are well positioned to provide this leadership. We are optimistic
about Lansen’s future.

Looking forward, the Group will seize opportunities arising from
the national medical reform in an active manner and endeavor to
become an even more exceptional listed company with long-term
competitiveness and a standardised marketing approach. With an
informed vision looking to the future, the Group will strive to create
better results in 2013 with the dedicated efforts of its workforce.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude
to the Board, management and employees of the Group for their
contributions and efforts in 2012 and also our clients, banks, suppliers,
shareholders and partners for their continuous support.

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Business Review

The Group recorded revenue of approximately US$93.8 million (2011:
US$74.5 million) for the year ended 31 December 2012, representing
an increase of 26.0% over last year. Revenue generated from rheumatic
specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals amounted to US$60.1
million (2011: US$49.1 million), representing a rise of 22.4% over
last year. It was primarily due to the stable growth of the three core
rheumatic specialty prescription products.

Lansen’s operating profit increased by 18.3% to US$16.2 million (2011:
US$13.7 million). The selling expenses for the year rose by 26.1%,
mainly for enhancing product awareness and market recognition of the
core products.

Looking back at 2012, the Group’s revenue experienced steady growth.
The increase in expenses was within expected and reasonable levels.
However, the increase in raw material costs and the changes in our
product sales mix resulted in the decrease in the gross profit margin;
combined with the downturn in the results of our associate, Zhejiang
Starry Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Starry”), these were the key
factors resulting in the decrease in the growth of our profit. Profit for
the year was approximately US$14.0 million (2011: US$12.5 million),
representing an increase of 12.4% over last year.

New opportunities under changing pharmaceutical policies

2012 was deemed to be a year of pharmaceutical policy change. The
various national and local policies being launched would bring profound
impact on the current and future development of the pharmaceutical
industry.

The National Development and Reform Commission adjusted the price
of pharmaceuticals again in 2012. After substantial adjustments on the
prices of gastrointestinal drugs in March, it released notices regarding
adjustments on the prices of respiratory antipyretic and analgesic
medicines and specialty drugs at the end of the year. Lansen’s core
products, Pafulin and MMF, were not on the list. On the other hand,
the price of Tuoshu (Leflunomide tablets) has dropped. However, it is
anticipated that this new price will have little impact on Lansen in 2013
in terms of its sales across China.

The Group will conform with State policies and regulations on a timely
basis within the context of price reduction on pharmaceuticals across
China. The Group will also seize opportunities arising from changing
pharmaceutical policies, optimise the organisational structure, actively
strengthen its marketing strategies and strive to enhance its market
penetration in order to maintain its leading position in rheumatology.
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Steady growth of core products and a record high in the sales
growth of MMF

Lansen’s core products are rheumatic specialty prescription western
pharmaceuticals — Pafulin (Total Glucosides of White Peony capsules),
Tuoshu (Leflunomide tablets) and MMF (Mycophenolate Mofetil). All
three products are disease modifying drugs for autoimmune rheumatic
diseases and had been included in the Medical Insurance Catalogue.
Amid changing pharmaceutical policies in 2012, Lansen insisted on
professional and academic marketing strategies and to cooperate with
rheumatology associations to implement “Zhang Naizheng Foundation”
and “CSTAR Project”. Lansen also cooperated with hospitals to
implement the “Cornerstone Scheme”, with doctors in organising
seminars and with patients through the “Lansen Care Club”. Driven
by Lansen’s strong and powerful overall marketing strategy, all core
products recorded satisfactory sales, of which, the sales of MMF (our
new product) made a record high in product growth, reaching a fast
growth of 147.6%.

During the year, the sales of modern Chinese herbal extracts reached a
record high of US$23.3 million, representing an increase of 26.6% over
last year. Sales of generic drugs and other pharmaceuticals grew rapidly
with a revenue of US$10.4 million, representing an increase of 50.2%
over last year.

Stable development of Starry through careful planning

During the year, Starry achieved steady development with sound
planning and has completed the expansion of its iohexol production
facilities, doubling the annual production capacity. Starry now has the
capability to implement large-scale production. It is expected that the
future sales of Starry will increase steadily.

During the year, Lansen increased the shareholding in Starry from
20.0% to 21.5%. Subsequent to the completion of the acquisition in
November 2012, Starry is still treated as an associate of the Company.
Its results has been accounted for by using the equity accounting
method. One of the business strategies of the Company is to explore
business opportunities through business alliances or acquisitions so as
to enlarge its range of rheumatic specialty pharmaceuticals, including
the production of upstream bulk pharmaceuticals of rheumatic specialty
pharmaceuticals. The investment in Starry has significant strategic
implication. It provides opportunities for the Company to take part in
the upstream supply business in the pharmaceutical industry. The Board
is of the view that this acquisition enables the Company to further
participate in the business of Starry in order to accumulate experience in
the production, management and control of bulk pharmaceuticals.
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Loxoprofen Sodium tablets, a new product that enables Lansen
to enter the market of non-steroidal anti-inflammatory drugs
Loxoprofen Sodium tablets, a non-steroidal anti-inflammatory drug, was
approved by the State Food and Drug Administration during the year. It
has been launched into the market in the second half of the reporting
period. The product is a supplement to the market of non-steroidal
anti-inflammatory drugs for Lansen. The launch of Loxoprofen Sodium
tablets provides more treatment options for doctors and patients and
at the same time it also acts as a driving force to expand the room for
growth of the Group. As the launch time is still short, the product is
currently in the preliminary stage of promotion. It is expected that there
will be room for growth for this product driven by the marketing of
Lansen’s product portfolio.

The completion and opening of a new quality control and
research and development centre

During the reporting period, the newly completed quality control and
research and development centre of the Group has been put into
service. The opening of this new centre will continue to upgrade the
research and development capability of the Company and enhance the
quality control standard of its products. It will lead the Group to be in
line with international standards in terms of the overall structure such
as the scale, production quality and management level. Meanwhile,
it ensures that the Group will be more competitive in the increasingly
competitive environment.
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Financial Review

Lansen maintained its competitiveness and recorded satisfactory results
in 2012 by realising continuous growth for the tenth year since its
establishment. Lansen’s revenue increased by 26.0% over last year to
US$93.8 million and its net profit amounted to US$14.0 million, up by
12.4% over last year.

Revenue

The Group recorded a revenue of US$93.8 million (2011: US$74.5
million) for the year ended 31 December 2012, representing an increase
of 26.0% over last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, revenue generated from
rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals amounted
to US$60.1 million (2011: US$49.1 million), representing an increase
of 22.4% over last year, while revenue generated from other
pharmaceuticals amounted to US$33.7 million (2011: US$25.3 million),
representing an increase of 33.1% over last year.

The increase in the Group’s revenue during the year was mainly
attributable to: (1) stable growth of income from its two core rheumatic
specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals, Pafulin and Tuoshu;
(2) the fast growth of MMF, an agency product launched in 2010; and
(3) continued development of modern Chinese medicine business. The
aggregate revenue from our three core products (Pafulin, Tuoshu and
MMF) amounted to US$56.0 million (2011: US$43.4 million), increasing
by 28.9% as compared to last year and representing approximately
59.7% of the total revenue of the Group. Revenue from modern
Chinese medicine extracts was US$23.3 million (2011: US$18.4 million),
representing an increase of 26.6% over last year and approximately
24.8% of the total revenue of the Group.

Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group recorded a gross
profit of US$54.4 million (2011: US$44.4 million), representing an
increase of 22.6% over last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the overall gross profit margin
of the Group was 58.0% (2011: 59.6%), representing a decrease of
1.6% over last year. The gross profit margin of rheumatic specialty
prescription western pharmaceuticals was 74.7% (2011: 76.2%),
representing a decrease of approximately 1.5% over last year. The gross
profit margin of other pharmaceuticals was 28.2% (2011: 27.4%),
representing an increase of approximately 0.8% over last year.

Annual Report 2012
—E-CHFFR

15



16

BAA B G IZ R AR A A
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

B R wm M oA

Management Discussion and Analysis

SRR AENEN X TR I BERARE
an B0 R R B R MRHER B A L3R - BT
EmAEERAN - BMBERNENX LA TER
RERFEEEBYE - XRENRALERICHE
BPBRAR EEImEMARIGEERER
HEREENBREHN  FEERNS TEE
HAbBEma)ERE -

H g A

Hib WA X Z B EBUT R RIRT TR BT Bk
A BHE_Z——F+_A=+—HIFENH
A B28EEETL(ZE——F 1 278EE
T0)  BEF EFA31% o BIFEBIEZRA
BT - By ARSI ARERE SR ERNE
I8 o

HERDHEAX

HERDHEASZETERE  WEITEHRKE -2
MOHERARBRBERSZ  QBINRA  kQ3)
ey BE-_Z——Ft+-A=+—HI1L%F
EREERSEAYA3I3EEET(ZE——
F:248BEERL) BWEFEA26.1% ©

AEBEBRNERIARM - ZIFREKE=KZOE
mABE - FRARTZHNMTE - BEFER
BEHERY - BREZEZORITRIEEE
RE - EEEMRBE AL U ERNEIE - T3
MEHSHEEBMOMS - EEEREALER
AB AT A EIERUE -

THRX

BHE—_ T —F+_A=1+—HIFENITHHR
Y AISAEENN(ZE——F :87H&EFET)
BEFEA13.4% - TTHEATENEZRHRA
SEEEREYERFTE -

B3 RS
BHE-_Z——F+_A=1+—RHIFE  £&EEHE
MR IS A0S AERTTIEMET. 0B ERTT
TERANAFHTFIGRITETIEN -

Annual Report 2012
—T-CHFR

The decrease in gross profit margin of rheumatic specialty prescription
western pharmaceuticals was mainly attributable to the increase in the
price of raw material and packaging material as compared to last year,
resulting in an increase in production costs. The increase in gross profit
margin of other pharmaceuticals was mainly attributable to the change
in product sales mix. Benefiting from becoming the exclusive distributor
through hospital channels in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”
or “China”) for all special skin care products of Shanghai Jahwa United
Company Limited’s “Yuzhe"” brand, the products of “Yuzhe” brand
pushed up the overall gross profit margin of other pharmaceuticals.

Other income

Other income, primarily including government grants and interest
income from bank deposits, amounted to US$2.8 million (2011: US$2.7
million) for the year ended 31 December 2012, representing an increase
of 3.1% over last year. Government grants primarily came from the
local government and were partly used as recognition of the Group’s
efforts in developing high-technology pharmaceutical products.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consisted of (1) promotion
costs by organising seminars, conferences and related expenses; (2) staff
costs; and (3) rental expenses. For the year ended 31 December 2012,
selling and distribution expenses amounted to US$31.3 million (2011:
US$24.8 million), representing an increase of 26.1% over last year.

The Group endeavoured to enhance brand recognition of its three core
products, Pafulin, Tuoshu and MMF. During the year, we held various
seminars, and were actively engaged in patient education. By organising
academic conferences across China, doctors and patients were able to
have a better understanding of the pharmacology, efficacy and benefits
of these products. Management believes that the above promotional
activities will bring long-lasting positive effect to the Group.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to US$9.8 million (2011: US$8.7 million), representing an
increase of 13.4% over last year. The increase in administrative expenses
was mainly due to the expansion of the Group’s scale of operation.

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the finance costs of the Group
increased from US$0.5 million to US$1.0 million, mainly due to increase
in average bank borrowings during the year.
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Share of post-tax profit of an associate

Share of post-tax profit of an associate for the year ended 31 December
2012 amounted to US$1.4 million (2011: US$1.9 million), representing
a decrease of 27.8% over last year.

On 26 November 2012, the Group indirectly increased its holding in
Starry to 21.5% by acquiring an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Cathay International Holdings Limited (“CIH"), which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. Starry is still treated as an associated
company of the Company and its results has been equity accounted for.

Starry has completed the expansion of its iohexol production facilities
with an annual capacity doubled to 500 tonnes. Due to the delay in
obtaining GMP certification of the expanded facilities and an increase
in raw material prices, the contribution from Starry dropped during the
year. The situation started to improve in the second half of 2012 and
the contribution of Starry will gradually improve in the future.

Income tax expense

Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“Ningbo Liwah")
obtained the certification as a high technology enterprise and enjoyed a
preferential income tax rate of 15% since 1 January 2010. In addition,
Bozhou Lansen Herbal Industry Limited is engaged in certain qualified
agricultural business in the PRC with the relevant profits exempted from
enterprise income tax. The Group’s income tax expense for the year
ended 31 December 2012 amounted to US$2.6 million (2011: US$2.7
million), representing a decrease of 4.7% as compared to last year. The
Group's effective income tax rate was 15.5% (2011: 17.8%).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

The profit or net profit attributable to owners of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2012 grew by 12.4% or US$1.5 million to
US$14.0 million as compared to US$12.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

The Group primarily finances its working capital and other capital
requirements by net cash generated from operating activities and
resorts to external financing including both long-term and short-term
bank borrowings from time to time when the operating cash flow is
insufficient to meet the capital requirements.

The Group's financial position continued to be strong. As at 31
December 2012, net current assets and current ratio of the Group were
approximately US$23.5 million (2011: US$39.0 million) and 1.4 (2011:
2.1) respectively.
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As at 31 December 2012, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
amounted to US$11.4 million (2011: US$15.6 million). As at 31
December 2012, the Group had pledged bank deposits of US$8.3
million (2011: US$7.3 million) to secure bank borrowings and bills
payables.

The Group's borrowings as at 31 December 2012 amounted to US$42.3
million (2011: US$28.4 million) which is fully repayable within 1 year
(2011: US$19.2 million is repayable within 1 year and US$9.2 million is
repayable after 1 year but within 5 years).

As at 31 December 2012, the Group's net debt-to-equity ratio was
18.3% (2011: 5.5%), calculated by net debt (borrowings minus cash
and bank balances and pledged other receivables) as at 31 December
2012 over total equity. The Group has minimal transactional currency
exposure to foreign currency risk as most of the financial assets and
liabilities held by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in the
respective functional currency of the subsidiaries. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2012, certain bank deposits, building and plant,
prepaid land lease payment and other receivables in an aggregate
carrying amount of US$26.5 million (2011: US$16.2 million) were
pledged to secure banking facilities and bank borrowings.

Capital commitment

As at 31 December 2012, the Group’s capital expenditure contracted
for but not provided in the financial statements amounted to US$2.6
million (2011: US$5.2 million).

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 December 2012, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities.
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Material acquisitions and disposals

On 23 November 2012, Horizon Network Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with Cathay International Capital Limited (“CICL"), a direct
wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, pursuant to which, Horizon Network
Limited agreed to purchase the entire issued share capital of Full Keen
Limited and the inter-company loan at an aggregate consideration of
RMB13,677,000 (approximately US$2,202,000).

The above acquisition was completed on 26 November 2012. The
Company has increased its holding in Starry from 20% to 21.5%. Starry
is still treated as an associated company of the Company and its results
has been equity accounted for.

Human resources

The Group had over 750 employees as at 31 December 2012. Staff
remuneration of the Group, including salary, allowances, medical
insurance and provident fund, is determined with reference to individual
performance, professional qualifications, experience in the industry and
relevant market trends.

Salaries of employees have been maintained at a competitive level and
are reviewed annually, with reference to the relevant labour market and
economic situation. The Group provides career advancement training in
the form of internal courses and workshops for the staff and encourages
the staff to participate in training programmes related to the Group's
business.
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Executive Director

Mr. XU Jun (f8E), age 42, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer of our Company. Mr. Xu is responsible for the overall
business strategy and corporate development of our Group. Mr. Xu has
been responsible for the overall management of our Group. Mr. Xu has
over 20 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry through his
working experience in China Resources Sanjiu Medical & Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (formerly Sanjiu Medical and Pharmaceutical Company Limited)
and its subsidiaries (the “Shenzhen Sanjiu Group”) since 1992. Mr. Xu
joined our Group at the end of 2001. Prior to joining our Group, Mr.
Xu held various managerial positions, including sales manager, head of
sales department and deputy general manager in a company within the
Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1992 to 2001. Mr. Xu obtained a bachelor
of science degree in economics from the Renmin University of China
(PRI ARAKE) in 1992 and an executive master degree in business
administration from the China Europe International Business School in
2003.

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen Burnau HUNT, age 73, is a non-executive Director and
chairman of our Company. Mr. Hunt joined the Cathay International
Group in 1992. He is the deputy chairman and a non-executive director
of Cathay International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the
London Stock Exchange. Mr. Hunt was formerly managing director
of Aliant Capital, an investment company in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt,
a US citizen, spent 24 years with Bank of America in international
management and lending positions. Mr. Hunt was senior vice president
and area general manager for Bank of America located in Hong Kong.
Mr. Hunt was president of the American Chamber of Commerce in
Hong Kong in 1989. In 1990, Mr. Hunt was appointed to the Hong
Kong Government’s International Business Committee, and from 1989
to 1991 was a member of the Hong Kong Government’s Advisory
Committee on Free Trade. Mr. Hunt is currently a trustee of the
American Chamber of Commerce’s Charitable Foundation. Mr. Hunt
also served as a member of the Main Board and GEM Listing Committee
of the Stock Exchange from November 2004 to June 2011. Since
October 2012, Mr. Hunt has been a director and Chief Executive Officer
of Solar Plus (HK) Limited, a private investment company incorporated
in Hong Kong. Mr. Hunt obtained a bachelor of arts degree from Duke
University in 1961 and a master’s degree in international affairs from
Columbia University in 1963.
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Mr. LEE Jin Yi (Z%I[E), age 55, is a non-executive Director and deputy
chairman of our Company. Mr. Lee joined the CIH Group in January
2010 and is the chief executive officer of CIH. Mr. Lee has extensive
experience in the banking industry and held various senior management
positions with major financial institutions over the past 20 years. Mr. Lee
has been a director of Xiamen City Commercial Bank. Prior to joining
the CIH Group, Mr. Lee was the managing director and chief executive
officer of Fubon Bank (Hong Kong) Limited for five and half years and
a director of Fubon Financial Holding Company Limited. Prior to that,
Mr. Lee was the managing director and China senior country officer of
J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. and chairman of the Hong Kong Management
Committee of J.P. Morgan Chase & Co. Mr. Lee was appointed as an
independent director of Taichung Bank on 22 June 2011. Taichung
Bank is listed on Taiwan Stock Exchange. Mr. Lee obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Harvard University in 1984. Since
October 2012, Mr. Lee has been a director of HK & Macau Taiwanese
Charity Fund Limited, a charitable institution registered in Hong Kong.

Mr. TANG Jun (BE), age 53, is a non-executive Director of our
Company. Mr. Tang joined the CIH Group in 1994 and has been
working in the business development department, responsible for
exploring investment opportunities in the pharmaceutical industries
for our Group. Currently, Mr. Tang is the vice president and head of
business development of the CIH Group. Mr. Tang is also acting as
chairman for Ningbo Liwah, Lansen Medicine (Shenzhen) Company
Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”) and Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical
Company Limited (“Ningbo Lansen”), and a director of Xiao Haotian
Bio-Engineering Technology Co. Ltd. (“Xiao Haotian"). Mr. Tang
obtained a bachelor of philosophy degree from Hangzhou University in
1982, a master of philosophy degree from Beijing Normal University in
1986 and a licentiate degree in law from Lapland University, Finland in
1993.

Ms. TAO Fang Fang (B85 %), age 42, is a non-executive Director of
our Company. Ms. Tao joined the CIH Group in 2007 and is also acting as
a director of Xian Haotian. Ms. Tao became a professional accountant
and a registered accountant in 1996 and 1998 respectively. Before
being promoted to the position of director of finance department of
a leading pharmaceutical group in China, Ms. Tao worked as financial
controller for a manufacturing company and financial manager for a
marketing and sales company under the control of that group. Ms. Tao
graduated from the department of accounting of Shanghai University of
Finance and Economics in 1992.
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Ms. YIP Pui Ling, Rebecca (¥ffl}), age 54, is a non-executive
Director of our Company, company secretary of CIH, vice president
and head of asset management of the CIH Group responsible for the
management of the operations of the CIH Group's invested projects
and is also acting as chairman of Xian Haotian and its subsidiaries. Ms.
Yip is a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") since 1994, a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants since 1991, and an associate of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales (“ICAEW") since 2008. Ms. Yip
is also an associate of The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators since 1988 and The Hong Kong Institute of Company
Secretaries since 1994. Prior to joining the CIH Group in February 1994,
Ms. Yip worked for KPMG as an auditor and tax consultant for 7 years.
Ms. Yip graduated from Lingnan College where she obtained a diploma
in business administration and accounting in 1981 and a honours
diploma in accounting in 1983.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. CHAN Kee Huen, Michael (FR32JE), age 61, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Chan joined our Group
on 9 April 2010. Mr. Chan has over 32 years of external audit, IT audit,
training, accounting and finance, company secretarial and corporate
administration, MIS management, internal audit, information security,
risk management and compliance experience. Mr. Chan is a fellow of
the HKICPA and The Chartered Association of Certified Accountants
and a fellow and specialist in information technology of CPA Australia.
Mr. Chan is also associate or member of the following professional
bodies: The Hong Kong Computer Society, Hong Kong Securities and
Investment Institute, and the Life Management Institute. He is also a
certified information systems auditor with the Information Systems
Audit and Control Association and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute
of Directors. Mr. Chan is the chief executive of C&C Advisory Services
Limited, senior advisor of New Frontier Computer Systems Limited and
an adjunct professor in the School of Accounting and Finance of the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Chan has worked at CMG Life
Assurance Limited (formerly Jardine CMG Life Assurance Limited) from
1991 to 1996 and his last position was general manager, compliance.
He was the head of internal audit of Dao Heng Bank/Guoco Group
Limited from 1996 to 2000, the head of compliance in Greater China,
managing director of DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited from 2001 to
2003, the group financial controller of Lam Soon (Hong Kong) Limited
from 2004 to 2005, the director of Quality Assurance of HKICPA in
2006 and the head of group compliance of Ping An Insurance (Group)
Company of China, Limited from December 2006 to April 2009. Mr.
Chan graduated with a higher diploma in accountancy from Hong Kong
Polytechnic in 1976.
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Mr. TANG Chiu Ping, Raymond (B} ¥ F), age 64, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Tang joined our Group on
9 April 2010. Mr. Tang has been in the executive search field since 1985
when he joined the Hong Kong office of Russell Reynolds Associates.
Mr. Tang was formerly chairman, Greater China at Russell Reynolds
Associates until late 2008 when he retired from the industry. Mr.
Tang was educated in the United States at Tufts University in Boston,
Massachusetts where he obtained a bachelor of arts degree in 1972;
and he graduated with a master’s degree in public health from the Yale
University School of Medicine in New Haven, Connecticut in 1975. Mr.
Tang has served as a member of non-governmental organisations such
as the Hong Kong Council of Academic Accreditation and Vocational
Qualifications.

Mr. Fritz Heinrich HORLACHER, age 63, is an independent
non-executive Director of our Company. Mr. Horlacher joined our Group
on 10 February 2011. Mr. Horlacher has over 30 years' experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Mr. Horlacher started his pharmaceutical career
with Roche Australia in 1974. Mr. Horlacher worked at Zuellig Pharma
Asia Pacific (“Zuellig Pharma”) from 1981 to 2008. Mr. Horlacher was
the chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma from 1995 to 2008 and
was responsible for its operations servicing more than 125 international
research-based pharmaceutical manufacturers in the Asia Pacific region.
Mr. Horlacher retired as chief executive officer of Zuellig Pharma in
2008. From 2005 to 2007, Mr. Horlacher was an alternate director of
Invida Group Pte Ltd. Mr. Horlacher was a non-executive director of
Australian Pharmaceutical Industries Limited (a company listed on the
Australian Securities Exchange) from 2002 to 2004. Mr. Horlacher was
the Asia representative on the board of directors of the International
Federation of Pharmaceutical Wholesalers from 2002 to 2008. He was
appointed regional director of Asia for the Pharmaceutical Wholesale
Division of Alliance Boots in April 2011. He was also appointed as a
director and chairman of the Board of Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Corporation with effect from 21 July 2011. Guangzhou Pharmaceutical
Corporation is a joint venture company with Alliance BMP Limited and
Guangzhou Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited each holding 50% of
shares. Mr. Horlacher graduated in 1969 from Montana Institute in
Switzerland and from Union College in South Africa in 1972.

Senior Management

Mr. LIU Bang Min (8|2 ), age 41, is the senior vice president of
sales and general manager of both Shenzhen Lansen and Ningbo
Lansen responsible for the marketing and management of the Group.
Mr. Liu joined our Group in September 2012 and has over 17 years
of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Liu had been the national sales director (Autoimmunity
and Rheumatology Group) of Abbott China from 2009 to 2011. Mr
Liu obtained a bachelor’s degree in medical imaging from Zhejiang
University School of Medicine (formerly Zhejiang Medical University) in
1993.
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Mr. MUI Chi Hung (#85#), age 46, is the company secretary, chief
financial officer and authorised representative of our Company. Mr.
Mui joined our Group in November 2010. Mr. Mui has over 20 years of
experience in financing, auditing and accounting. Prior to joining the
Company, Mr. Mui held various senior positions in different listed groups
and international accounting firms, including PricewaterhouseCoopers,
Far East Consortium Group and Rising Development Group, where
he spent 7 years serving as a financial controller, company secretary
and executive director. Mr. Mui obtained his bachelor’s degree in
management majoring in accounting from the University of Lethbridge
in Canada and his master’s degree in Professional Accounting from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2002. Mr. Mui is currently
a member of American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
HKICPA.

Ms. POON Lei Yung (;B#1%), age 47, is the senior vice president of
our Group. Ms. Poon joined the CIH Group in December 1997 and
had worked in the business development and finance departments
of the CIH Group and holds several directorships in the subsidiaries
of our Group. Prior to joining the CIH Group, Ms. Poon was the
assistant to president at Bessemer Asia Limited, a subsidiary of a U.S.
based company, Bessemer Holdings LLC. Ms. Poon has over 18 years
of experience with international firms that are specialised in direct
investments in China, and has worked in Hong Kong, Australia and
China. She obtained her master’s degree in business administration
from the University of South Australia in 2000.

Mr. ZHOU Rong (), age 43, is the senior vice president of
the Group and general manager of Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction
Technology Limited (”“Liwah Zhiti”). Mr. Zhou joined our Group
in December 2001 and has over 21 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Zhou was
employed by a company within the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group from 1991
to 2001. Mr. Zhou obtained his bachelor’s degree in heating, ventilation
and air-conditioning engineering from Shenyang Architectural and Civil
Engineering Institute in 1991.

Mr. LU Yu Jiang (8815I), age 41, is the senior vice president of
the Group and general manager of Ningbo Liwah. Mr. Lu joined our
Group in April 2008 and has over 19 years of experience in industrial
management. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Lu had been a director
and the financial controller of a technology group within the Shanshan
Group from 1997 to 2008. Mr. Lu obtained his master’s degree in
business administration from the Southwest Jiaotong University in 2009.

Mr. XU Guang (&), age 38, is the director of sales of the Group and
deputy general manager of both Shenzhen Lansen and Ningbo Lansen.
Mr. Xu joined the Group in January 2002 and has over 14 years of
experience in the pharmaceutical industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Xu was employed by a company within the Shenzhen Sanjiu Group
from 1998 to 2001. Mr. Xu graduated in 1996 from Xinjiang Institute of
Finance and Economics with a marketing major.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012.

Principal Activities

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
53.

An interim dividend of HK8.11 cents (approximately US1.05 cents) per
share amounting to HK$33,656,500 (approximately US$4,338,000) in
aggregate was paid to the shareholders during the year.

The Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK10.20 cents (approximately US1.32 cents) per share to the
shareholders on the register of members on 31 May 2013, amounting
to HK$42,330,000 (approximately US$5,461,000) in aggregate, subject
to approval by the shareholders in general meeting.

Fixed Assets
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Borrowings
Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in note 26 to the
financial statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Distributable Reserves of the Company

As 31 December 2012, the Company’s reserves available for distribution,
calculated in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to US$47,972,000, of which approximately US$5,461,000
has been proposed as a final dividend for the year. Details of movements
in the reserves of the Company during the year are set out in note 25 to
the financial statements.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, the aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s five
largest customers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s total
sales.

During the year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's
five largest suppliers accounted for 42.4% (2011: 38.1%) of the
Group's total purchases and purchases from the largest supplier
included therein amounted to 12.4% (2011: 10.6%).

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
owns more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in
any of the Group'’s five largest suppliers or customers.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Xu Jun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Xiao Dong (resigned on 14 December 2012)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman)
Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. Tang Jun

Ms. Tao Fang Fang

Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael

Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond

Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

In accordance with article 108 of the Company’s articles of association,
Messrs. Stephen Burnau Hunt, Lee Jin Yi and Tang Jun will retire by
rotation and, be eligible to offer themselves for re-election.
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Directors’ Service Contracts

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting ("AGM") has a service contract which is not determinable by
the Group within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures

At 31 December 2012, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

BEERT HARARE BT

EEHE 55 ERRHE BAZBEDL

Percentage of

Number of the issued

issued ordinary share capital of

Name of Director Capacity shares held the Company

RERE ErEXz A () 48,830,000 11.77%
Mr. Xu Jun Beneficiary of a trust (note) (1FE)
(Long position)

BERLE BB A 500,000 0.12%
Mr. Lee Jin Vi Beneficial owner (F2)
(Long position)

Stephen Burnau Hunt5t4E EmMAA 100,000 0.02%
Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt Beneficial owner (7 &)

et AKMERAAETIUNAEEETEEEKRENESE Note: Ever Sail Limited, acting as trustee of a discretionary trust set up for the benefit of
certain management personnel and employees of the Group and/or their respective
family and/or charity organisation (“the Management Trust”). Mr. Xu Jun who is
one of the beneficiaries of the Management Trust, is deemed to be interested in the

R/SBEERAZRER SJEEEBRREAZE
EEFZIEANEREER]  BHELALERERE
ERZEFREA  WERIWKMBERRRFE 2K

DA -

(Long position)

shares held by Ever Sail Limited.
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B EXPTIREEIN  MZZE—Z—ZF+-_A=1+— Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their associates
H #Essn e ARAATHEERMEE  had any interests or short positions in any shares, underlying shares
SEE Y ARG - BERG SEEBTEARE  or debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
FENHEGHIEI52{FB T ARCER 2 Mz as at 31 December 2012 which was required to be recorded pursuant
SRE - WIRIE FTHBITABEEITESFLSA  to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
EAESFREME AN T MBS 2 g%  and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

B Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.
BEROIEES 2ZH Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures

REREAER - AAT) - HIERARHKE(EM At no time during the year was the Company, its holding company, or

M A RIS E R B A s EK AR ZHE 2 5] any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements

2977 BERATESAEEBEANATSEM  to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of

Bt Ralfp s EEE 2 HAmESHE - the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.

ESENERGNP2ER Directors’ Interests in Contracts of Significance

MEALNT - HiZERAT - REMBATHME  No contract of significance, to which the Company, its holding
NAAEHFINARANARIEEEEZKEEHEAE  company, fellow subsidiaries or subsidiaries was a party and in which
BAERZERAY  RNERKERNTEMEERY  a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or

RER o indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
FERR Substantial Shareholders

RZZE——F+-A=+—8  XRARIEE As at 31 December 2012, the register of substantial shareholders

MEE M E336EFBE 2 T ERELMET ©  maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO shows

BA FIRBEEREE TESE 2R LUTAXEIR  that other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain

DHERQNRERARNTDBITRASHEAR 248 Directors, the following shareholders had notified the Company of

BEERAE o relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of the
Company.

BFEC®RT EARRTRERIT

REREHE iz 54 HERHE RAEZBDL

Percentage of

Number of the issued

issued ordinary share capital of

Name of Shareholder Notes Capacity shares held the Company

B R BN B8 S A I SHE (R D) 1 Ry fo 209,820,000 50.56%
BRAR([ERERESE(RE) ) Beneficial interest (1F%8)
Cathay International Pharma (Long position)

Manufacture and Distribution (China)
Limited (“Cl Pharma China”)

BB REED MR EEFRAF] 1 ST NE 209,820,000 50.56%
((E=BEEL]) Interest of a controlled (#FE)
Cathay International Changchun corporation (Long position)

Biotechnology and Pharmaceutical
(China) Limited (“CIC")

Annual Report 2012
—T-CHFR



BAA B G IZ R AR A A
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

FERHE
Report of the Directors

BEE®RT HAEQTE BT
RERERB Mz &4 ZRREAE RAEzBDL
Percentage of
Number of the issued
issued ordinary share capital of
Name of Shareholder Notes Capacity shares held the Company
I = B R A W 4ty Ko B2 2 (R ) 1 RIEEE R 209,820,000 50.56%
BRATN (B2 B YR & Interest of a controlled (F8)
22 () ) corporation (Long position)
Cathay International Biotechnology &
Pharmaceutical (China) Limited
("Cl Biotech & Pharma China”)
BZRERE AR AR 1 REnEEER 209,820,000 50.56%
EES - E-) Interest of a controlled (#FE)
Cathay International Pharmaceutical corporation (Long position)
Limited (“CIP")
BRI ER AR 1 Ry LB 209,820,000 50.56%
(T BIZR B = Y ilg 1) Interest of a controlled (F2)
Cathay International Biotech Company corporation (Long position)
Limited ("CIB")
Cathay International Holdings Limited 1 YL EB LR 209,820,000 50.56%
("CIH") Interest of a controlled (F2)
corporation (Long position)
Cathay International Enterprises Limited 2 SHOEBEREES 209,820,000 50.56%
("CIE") Interest of a controlled (HFE)
corporation (Long position)
Wu Zhen Tao 3 RREFEIMAKR 209,820,000 50.56%
EEEmA (5F&)
Founder of discretionary (Long position)
trusts and beneficiary
of a trust
B 4 REEEER 48,830,000 1.77%
Cheng Hoo Interest of a controlled (1FE)
corporation (Long position)
Loyal Peace Enterprises Limited 4 EnmkEm 48,830,000 11.77%
(“LPE") Beneficial interest (F2)
(Long position)
KMAR A FEA 48,830,000 1.77%
Ever Sail Limited Trustee (1F8)

(Long position)
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Notes:

(1) These shares are held by Cl Pharma China. CI Pharma China is owned as to 18% by
CIC and 82% by Cl Biotech & Pharma China. CIC is in turn owned as to 100% by CI
Biotech & Pharma China. Cl Biotech & Pharma China is in turn wholly owned by CIP.
CIP is wholly owned by CIB, which in turn is wholly owned by CIH. Therefore, CIC,
Cl Biotech & Pharma China, CIP, CIB, and CIH are deemed to be interested in these
shares.

(2) CIH is held as to approximately 60.99% by CIE. Therefore, CIE is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Cl Pharma China.

(3) The entire issued share capital of CIE is held by a trust set up by Mr. Wu Zhen Tao for
the benefit of Mr. Wu Zhen Tao and members of his family (“Wu Family Trust”). Mr.
Wu Zhen Tao as founder of the Wu Family Trust is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by CIE.

(4) The entire issued share capital of LPE is held by Ever Sail Limited acting as the
trustee of the Management Trust whom in turn is wholly owned by Mr. Cheng Hoo.
Therefore, Mr. Cheng Hoo is deemed to be interested in the shares held by LPE.

Save as disclosed above, no person, other than the Directors of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares, underlying shares and debentures” above,
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.

Confirmation of Independence
The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the "Listing Rules”). The Company considers all of the independent
non-executive Directors are independent.

Connected Transactions

On 23 November 2012, Horizon Network Limited, an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with CICL, a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, pursuant
to purchase the entire issued share capital of Full Keen Limited, a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of CICL, and the inter-company loan
at an aggregate consideration of RMB13,677,000 (approximately
US$2,202,000).

Upon completion of this acquisition, the Company has increased
its holding in Starry from 20% to 21.5%. Starry is still treated as an
associated company of the Company and its results has been equity
accounted for.
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CICL is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of CIH, which is a controlling
shareholder of the Company. As such, CICL is a connected person of
the Company. As the applicable percentage ratios as defined in Rule
14.07 of the Listing Rules in respect of the transaction are greater than
1% but less than 5% and the consideration exceeds HK$ 1,000,000,
the acquisition constitutes a connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but is exempt from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under the Listing Rules.

Details of the transaction have been published on the Company’s
announcement dated 23 November 2012.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the employees of the Group are determined
with reference to individual performance, professional qualifications,
experience in the industry and relevant market trends.

The emoluments of the Directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s operating
results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rate basis to existing
shareholders.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the date of
this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public float as
required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

Financial Summary
A summary of the Group's results and its assets and liabilities is set out
on pages 5 to 6.
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Auditor

Grant Thornton (now known as JBPB & Co.) acted as auditor of the
Company since 1 January 2007. During the year ended 31 December
2010, due to a merger of the businesses of Grant Thornton and BDO
Limited and to practise in the name of BDO Limited, the Company
announced on 26 November 2010 that Grant Thornton resigned as
auditor of the Company and BDO Limited was appointed as auditor of
the Company with effect from 8 December 2010 and up to the date of
this report.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company
to re-appoint BDO Limited as auditor of the Company.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

Stephen Burnau Hunt
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 March 2013
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Company and the Board are devoted to achieving and maintaining
the highest standards of corporate governance as the Board believes
that effective corporate governance practices are fundamental to
enhancing shareholder value and safeguarding interests of the
shareholders and other stakeholders. Accordingly, the Company has
adopted sound corporate governance principles that emphasise a quality
Board, effective internal control, stringent disclosure practices and
transparency and accountability to all stakeholders.

The Stock Exchange has made various amendments to the Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “Former Code”) set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, and the revised code, namely
Corporate Governance Code (the “New Code”), became fully effective
on 1 April 2012. The Company has complied with all the applicable
code provisions of the Former Code from 1 January 2012 to 31 March
2012. The Company has also complied with all the code provisions of
the New Code from 1 April 2012 to 31 December 2012, except with a
deviation from paragraph A.5 of the New Code. Under paragraph A.5
of the Code, the Company should establish a Nomination Committee
with specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and duties. Currently, the Company had not established
a Nomination Committee and had retained the functions with the
Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee has been
delegated the functions of a Nomination Committee since its listing on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange in 2010. As such, the Board is
of the view that the members of the Remuneration Committee possess
the necessary experience and knowledge to discharge the functions of
a Nomination Committee. The Board shall review the composition and
operation of the Board Committees from time to time and shall consider
establishing a Nomination Committee if such need arises.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”). Having made
specific enquiry of all Directors, all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and the
code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions adopted by
the Company.

The Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for leading and controlling the business
operations of the Group. It formulates strategic directions, oversees
the operations and monitors the financial performance of the Group.
The management manages the businesses of the Group within the
delegated power and authority given by the Board. The management is
accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall operation.
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The Company’s articles of association set out matters which are
specifically reserved to the Board for its decision.

The Company Secretary or his assistant is responsible for taking minutes
of the Board and Board Committee meetings. Draft minutes and written
resolutions will be circulated to all Board members or Board Committee
members for review and comment within a reasonable period of time.
Final version of the minutes and written resolutions will be provided for
record within a reasonable period of time and the signed copies are kept
in the Company’s minutes book maintained by the Company Secretary
for Directors’ inspection.

As at 31 December 2012 and at the date of this report, the Board
comprises of one executive Director, five non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. A description of the
Directors is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” section from pages 20 to 24 and on the Company’s
website.

As at 31 December 2012 and at the date of this report, the Board
comprises of the following members:

BREZRE R REREE
AEEEHENRES AEZEHWAEH
Date of first Date of last
appointment re-election as
= Directors to the Board Director
BITEE: Executive Director:
RERE(TTHAEZ) Mr. Xu Jun (Chief Executive Officer) —E2-TE—-A)\R —E——#AA+MNA
8 January 2010 14 May 2012
FHTES: Non-executive Directors:
Stephen Burnau Huntst 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman) “T-TFPANE —E——FMA=-FNH
(/) 9 April 2010 28 April 2011
TEBEEE(FEE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) “E-ZFENAAR —ZE——FWA-+N\H
9 April 2010 28 April 2011
HETE Mr. Tang Jun —Z-ZFPAAA —E——FMA=-+N\H
9 April 2010 28 April 2011
b5 22t Ms. Tao Fang Fang —Z-2F—H/\H —E-—FHATMA
8 January 2010 14 May 2012
BB+ Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca —EENEFENATA —E-—FhA+HEA
10 September 2009 14 May 2012
BYEHITES Independent non-executive Directors:
BRECERE Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael —E-FFNBAHA —E——FMA-+\H
9 April 2010 28 April 2011
R Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond “T-ZTFNANAE —E——FNA-+/\H
9 April 2010 28 April 2011
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher5t 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher “T—%F-fF+H —E——FMA=-+N\H
10 February 2011 28 April 2011
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The size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time to time,
taking into account the requirements under the Listing Rules and the
scope and nature of operations of the Company, to ensure that the size
of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views and facilitate
effective decision making. The Directors come from diverse background
with varied expertise in finance, human resources and pharmaceutical
business fields. The Company has maintained on the Company’s
website and on the website of the Stock Exchange an updated list of its
Directors identifying their roles and functions.

Independent Non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills
and business experience to the Group. They also bring independent
judgement on issues of strategy, performance and risk through their
contribution to the Board meetings and to the Board Committees’
meetings.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, there are three
independent non-executive Directors, representing one-third of the
Board. Among the three independent non-executive Directors, one of
them has appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or related
financial management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to the
Listing Rules. With reference to such confirmations, the Company, to
its best knowledge, considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors fulfill the guidelines on independence as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and all to be independent.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman are segregated from the chief executive
officer. The chairman is responsible for managing the Board, steering
the Board to formulate overall strategies and business development
plans, ensuring the receipt of sufficient, complete and reliable
information by each Director and the receipt of reasonable explanations
for the issues raised at the Board meetings. The chief executive
officer is responsible for managing the business of the Company and
implementing policies, business objectives and plans formulated by
the Board, and is accountable to the Board for the Company’s overall
operation. The senior management team is responsible for the day-to-
day operations of the Group under the leadership of the chief executive
officer of the Company.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal

The executive Director has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for a term of three years commencing 9 April 2010. Each
of the non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing 9 April 2010 except for Mr. Fritz
Heinrich Horlacher whose commencement date was 10 February 2011.
All Directors appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as
addition to the Board shall retire and be eligible for re-appointment at
the first general meeting after appointment.

At each AGM one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

In accordance with the provisions of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt, and Mr. Lee Jin Yi and Mr. Tang
Jun will retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election in the forthcoming AGM.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company had not
established a Nomination Committee but had retained the functions
with the Remuneration Committee. The Remuneration Committee
members from time to time identify individuals suitably qualified to
become Board members and select or make recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for directorships or
senior management. In considering the nomination of new Directors
or senior management, the Remuneration Committee will take into
account the qualification, ability, working experience, leadership and
professional ethics of the candidates as well as the independence
requirement in the case of an independent non-executive Director.
The Remuneration Committee has adopted procedures for nomination
of a new Director or senior management, pursuant to which (1) an
interview will be conducted with the prospective candidates; and (2) the
Remuneration Committee will consider and, if thought fit, make suitable
recommendations to the Board.

Changes of Directors and Senior Management

The Board has approved (1) the resignation of Mr. Lee Jin Yi as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee, effective 29 March 2012;
(2) the appointment of Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond as the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, effective 29 March 2012; (3) the
resignation of Mr. Xie Hong Wei as senior vice president of sales and
general manager of both Shenzhen Lansen and Ningbo Lansen, effective
31 May 2012; (4) the appointment of Mr. Liu Bang Min as senior vice
president of sales and general manager of both Shenzhen Lansen and
Ningbo Lansen, effective 11 September 2012; and (5) the resignation of
Mr. Liu Xiao Dong as an executive Director and member of the Executive
Committee, effective 14 December 2012.
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Subsequent to the year end, the Remuneration and Executive
Committees have approved (1) the resignation of Mr. Liu Xiao Dong
as senior vice president of the Group, effective 31 January 2013; (2)
the promotion of Mr. Zhou Rong as senior vice president of the Group,
effective 6 March 2013; (3) the promotion of Mr. Lu Yu Jiang as senior
vice president of the Group and general manager of Ningbo Liwah,
effective 6 March 2013; and (4) the promotion of Mr. Xu Guang as
director of sales of the Group and deputy general manager of both
Shenzhen Lansen and Ningbo Lansen, effective 6 March 2013.

Referring to the announcement dated 6 March 2013, the Board
announced that the executive director service contract of Mr. Xu Jun
will expire on 8 April 2013 (the “Termination Date"”) and the Board had
received notice from Mr. Xu that he will not renew his service contract
due to personal reasons that he would like to devote more time to his
family. With effect from the Termination Date, Mr. Xu will no longer
serve as the executive Director, a member of the Executive Committee
and the CEO of the Group. The Board also announced on the same
date that Mr. Liu Bang Min will be appointed as the executive Director,
a member of the Executive Committee and the CEO of the Group with
effect from 9 April 2013.

Continuing professional development

The Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. The Company from time to time updates and
provides training to the Directors, and organises seminars on the latest
development of the Listing Rules, applicable laws, rules and regulations
relating to Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

Upon appointment to the Board, the Directors will be provided with a
comprehensive briefing of the Group’s businesses by senior executives.
Continuing education and information are provided to the Directors
regularly to ensure that the Directors are apprised of the latest changes
in the commercial, legal and regulatory environment in which the Group
conducts its businesses.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company has organised
an in-house training session covering the topics of Directors’ duties
under Appendix 10 and Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules and new inside
information disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules and the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. All Directors attended the seminars.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is collectively responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties. During the year, the Board formalised the inclusion
of the following corporate governance duties into the terms of reference
of the Board:

- to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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- to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Company’s
employees and the Directors; and

- to review the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report.

Board Meetings

The Board is expected to meet regularly at least four times a year.
Between scheduled meetings, the senior management of the Group
provides information to Directors on a regular basis regarding the
activities and development in the businesses of the Group. The
Directors have full access to information on the Group and independent
professional advice at all times whenever deemed necessary by the
Directors.

The Board held five meetings during the year ended 31 December 2012
with the attendance of each Director as follows:

HESERE,
BITERRE HE=R
No. of meetings
attended/ Attendance
== Directors No. of meetings held rate
HITES . Executive Directors:
RESE(TTiBAEE) Mr. Xu Jun (Chief Executive Officer) 5/5 100%
AR (R —FE——F Mr. Liu Xiao Dong 5/5 100%
+=A+PIHEFHE) (resigned on 14 December 2012)
FHITES : Non-executive Directors:
Stephen Burnau Huntft (/%) Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt (Chairman) 5/5 100%
TEREEE(FIEE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Deputy Chairman) 5/5 100%
BRI Mr. Tang Jun 5/5 100%
bR s At Ms. Tao Fang Fang 5/5 100%
BG4t Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 5/5 100%
BIFHITES ! Independent non-executive
Directors:

BRECAS ST Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 5/5 100%
i Y Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 5/5 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacherst 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 5/5 100%

REEENTEHREEMNE  EEHELREAN T
REFEAS RN NESHANTPR=KER
EEEHIENMBXX - REMEEAMS - £E
BROENERLT  EFSRERETHRENE
A o BRAR R ERMAAIFTE RS BRI -
REFREH X5 ZHFRAEZGREINEE
BHEARMEIEZRTREEARGNES
BARBRABRRRERSE  BAWEETER
FENEEABA -
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With respect to regular meetings of the Board, the Directors will be
given written notice of the meeting at least 14 days in advance and an
agenda with supporting Board papers no less than three days prior to
the meeting. For other meetings, Directors are given as much notice
as is reasonable and practicable in the circumstances. Except for those
circumstances permitted by the articles of association of the Company,
a Director who has a material interest in any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other kind of proposal put forward to the Board for
consideration, will abstain from voting on the relevant resolution and
such Director is not counted as quorum.
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The Board has devised its specific written terms of reference setting
out its duties, responsibilities, powers and functions which include the
following:

- developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and making recommendations to the
Board;

- reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

- taking responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
prevailing accounting standards and laws, approving the financial
statements and appointing and liaising with the Group’s external
auditors;

- reviewing the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report in its Annual Report;

- liaising with all regulatory authorities and organisations on all
matters relating to the Group, and monitoring changes in their
policies relating to and affecting the Group; and

- ensuring accountability towards and sufficient communication
with the Group’s shareholders.

During the year, a meeting of the Chairman and the non-executive
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) without the
presence of the executive Directors and senior management was held to
discuss and review document circulation flow submitted to the Directors
prior to Board meetings.

Board Committees

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Executive Committee. Please see below for the
composition and responsibilities of the committees. Each committee
shall provide their recommendations to the Board based on their
respective terms of reference. The decisions of the Board on such
recommendations shall be final, unless otherwise stated in the terms of
reference of these committees.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three independent
non-executive Directors and two non-executive Directors. Mr. Chan
Kee Huen, Michael, an independent non-executive Director, currently
serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is
expected to meet regularly at least three times per year.

The Board has established the Audit Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated by the Board. In order to comply with the New Code, the
Board adopted a revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee on
29 March 2012. The revised terms of reference of the Audit Committee
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The major duties and responsibilities of the Audit Committee include
the following:

- oversee the relationship with the external auditor, including:

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditor,
approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditor and addressing any questions of
resignation or dismissal of such auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards; and

o developing and implementing policy on the engagement of
the external auditor to supply non-audit services;

- review and monitor the integrity of the Group’s financial statements,
annual reports and half-year reports, and to review significant

financial reporting judgements contained therein; and

- review the effectiveness of the financial reporting and internal

B o control systems of the Group.
HE2ZZT——F+_A=1+—HILFE #F%Z The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
BefRTT=oRez MEIKENTEFEIB LM December 2012 with the attendance of each member as follows:
= -

HEEBRRE
BITERXNY HE =R

No. of meetings

Name of Audit attended/
EREZEEREHB Committee members No. of meetings held  Attendance rate
FRECE A (F/E) Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 3/3 100%

(Chairman)

TERELE Mr. Lee Jin Yi 3/3 100%
Bt Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 3/3 100%
SRR A& Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 3/3 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacherst 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 3/3 100%
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During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Audit Committee had:

- reviewed with management and external auditor on the interim
results and annual results and related announcements including
the related disclosures, integrity of financial reporting and the
accounting policies adopted by the Group prior to submission to
the Board for approval;

- discussed with management on significant judgements affecting
the Group's consolidated financial statements;

- reviewed the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditor and recommended the Board on the appointment
of the external auditor;

- reviewed and discussed the internal control reports including
the status of implementing recommendations from the previous
reports; and

- reviewed and assessed the adequacy and effectiveness of the
Group's internal control and risk management.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company consists of three
independent non-executive Directors and two non-executive Directors.
Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond, an independent non-executive Director,
currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
Remuneration Committee is expected to meet regularly at least once
per year.

The Board has established the Remuneration Committee with specific
written terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities
and authorities delegated by the Board. In order to comply with the
New Code, the Board adopted a revised terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee on 29 March 2012. The revised terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee are available on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The major duties and
responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are:

- to make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management remuneration and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy
and placing such recommendations before the Board concerning
the total remuneration and/or benefits granted to the Directors
and senior management from time to time;

- to assess the performance of executive Directors and senior
management;
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to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

to conform to any requirement, direction, and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitution of the Company or imposed by the Listing Rules or
any applicable law;

to assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors;

to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors and senior
management; and

to make recommendations to the Board on the nomination,
appointment or re-appointment of Directors and senior
management.

HE_Z——F+— E—I— HIEFE » #8Z  The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the year ended
BeRTTOREE  MBSKEMEFB R 31 December 2012 with the attendance of each member as follows:
T
HESERE
BITERRH HER
No. of meetings
Name of Remuneration attended/
FHEESRERA Committee members No. of meetings held  Attendance rate
BORAE A (F ) Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 4/4 100%
(Chairman™)
Stephen Burnau Hunt%t 4 Mr. Stephen Burnau Hunt 4/4 100%
B Mr. Lee Jin Yi* 4/4 100%
BRACIE 4 Mr. Chan Kee Huen, Michael 4/4 100%
Fritz Heinrich Horlacherst 4 Mr. Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 4/4 100%

s A-T-—EZA-thAR SEEAETEME
FHEBRER  MURTAEAEECAFMER
B -

BHE_Z——F+-A=1+—HILFE  FME
BeHHTEENSNERENRBETIE
B ERERSRERBNFMER, FFEUALS
HFmESeRMtEEE -
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*

Effective 29 March 2012, Mr. Lee Jin Yi ceased to be the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and Mr. Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond has been appointed as
the chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Remuneration
Committee had assessed the performance of the executive Directors
and the senior management, reviewed the remuneration structure/
package of the Directors and the senior management, and made
recommendation to the Board on their remuneration.
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HitEEZEEM4S  The following table shows the breakdown of Directors’ remuneration

BRARLNT - for the year ended 31 December 2012:
Ei A= BIRER
e ANEWEF HEGEN et
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
and benefits benefit plans
Fees in kind contributions Total
TErx TEx TERn TEn
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 Uss$'000
WITESE : Executive Directors:
RE Xu Jun - 203 17 220
BER(R =T ——F Liu Xiao Dong (resigned as
+=-A+UBEET) at 14 December 2012) - 119 14 133

FMITESE -
Stephen Burnau Hunt
FERE
5B
iabsbz]
Emie

BFITEE ¢
BRECE

Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

m T

Non-executive Directors:

Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 - - 39
Lee Jin Yi - - - -
Tang Jun - 8 - 8

Tao Fang Fang - - - -
Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca - - _ _

Independent non-executive

Directors:

Chan Kee Huen, Michael 32 - - 32
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 29 - - 29
Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 31 - - 31

131 330 31 492

e —F+-_A=+—
ABRIBIRERIZI D HENE -

AIEFESRERE  The remuneration of the members of the senior management by band
for the year ended 31 December 2012:

—E—=—F
2012
AR

No of individuals

T %129,0003T*
129,001 T E 193,500% 7T

Nil - US$129,000* 5
US$129,001 - US$193,500 1

* HRBEEFERIPERERBPENHEESRER Mr. Xie Hong Wei resigned from the senior vice president of sales and general

e BT ——FRA=T—B4H: m2 manger of both Shenzhen Lansen and Ningbo Lansen, effective 31 May 2012; and
EREABZERFBAERERBAENHESRE Mr. Liu Bang Min was appointed as the senior vice president of sales and general
BEFLKE BT —_FhA+—BER - #Hi% manger of both Shenzhen Lansen and Ningbo Lansen, effective 11 September 2012.
£ RBISEAENBE AT ZE129,000E AR The remuneration of Mr. Xie and Mr. Liu were included in the band ranged from nil

to US$129,000.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee of the Company consists of one executive
Director and three non-executive Directors. Mr. Lee Jin Yi, a non-
executive Director, currently serves as the chairman of the Executive
Committee.

The Board has established the Executive Committee with specific written
terms of reference setting out the duties, responsibilities and authorities
delegated by the Board. The major duties and responsibilities of the
Executive Committee include reviewing the financials and financial-
related matters, assisting in developing annual and medium- to long-
term corporate strategies, reviewing and approving new business
development plans, and reviewing and approving research and
development projects.

Executive Committee members normally meet every month to keep
abreast of the latest activities and performance of the Group and to
monitor and ensure that management carries out the directions and
strategies set by the Board.

Hz2—Z2——F+-_A=+—HILFE  #$17Z& The Executive Committee held eleven meetings during the year ended
BeRTT+—reE  MESKEMTFEERM 31 December 2012 with the attendance of each member as follows:
= -
HEEBRRE
BITERRH
No. of meetings
Name of Executive attended/No. of HER
HITEESHENR Committee members meetings held  Attendance rate
ZHELE(EE) Mr. Lee Jin Yi (Chairman) 11/11 100%
REEE Mr. Xu Jun 11/11 100%
REREE (R -_F——F Mr. Liu Xiao Dong 11/11 100%
+=APIHEHTE) (resigned on 14 December 2012)
FBos 52+ Ms. Tao Fang Fang 11/11 100%
EmS Lt Ms. Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca 11/11 100%
BEREX Accountability and Audit
B E Financial Reporting

EEAEREARBEEERRGHREREAN
SEFHHRENEL - TATRSAERAEE
BB REFTENEL -

BRI GRRETEEMARARMEENE
ECE-—F+ A=+ -BILFEZHEENH
WRHRBENREN I RSB -
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Group in accordance with statutory
requirements and accounting standards. The Directors also acknowledge
their responsibilities to ensure that the financial statements for the
Group are published in a timely manner.

BDO Limited acknowledges its reporting responsibilities in the auditor’s
report on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2012.
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The Directors’ and auditor’s responsibilities in respect of the financial
statements are set out in the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages
51 to 52 in this report.

Management has provided to all members of the Board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's performance and position in detail.

Auditor's Remuneration
During the year, BDO Limited was appointed as the Group's auditor
until the conclusion of next AGM.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the fees paid/payable to
BDO Limited in respect of audit and non-audit services were as follows:

et ERER

REMHE Services rendered Fee paid/payable

FET

Us$'000

Z B RS Audit services 152

X ARTE Non-audit services -
RNAWE Company Secretary

NRAWEESHEREEHEETSHIE LRIEE
ZER - BREFENEAGIBRBREKEES
SR RIERF ©

PREEVESATWENERLRE - MATF
WERE A NEERRETHNERSRUENE
B U LZHEEHARTINEXEE -

REBE-Z——F+-A=+—B1FE A7
MECDET AL/ NENEEREY - T4
MR AIE3 2918 TE -

PR B B 22 I o e 5T A
EFEeARARAEENANERARAL B TR
AR EREARAR - BRI BENAREE -
EZERNERAR N TENRMEZERFIAR
ERRMFE R A EBNEE -

The Company Secretary, Mr. Mui Chi Hung, plays an important role in
supporting the Board by ensuring good information flow within the
Board and that board policy and procedures are followed.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters and should also facilitate induction and professional
development of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the Company Secretary has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Internal Control and Risk Assessment

The Board is responsible for the internal control system of the Group
and has the responsibility for reviewing its effectiveness including
financial, operational and compliance controls. The Board is committed
to implement an effective and sound internal control system to
safeguard the interest of shareholders and the Group’s assets.
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To further strengthen the internal control of the Group, an internal
control department was established. The internal control department
is currently headed by Mr. Mui Chi Hung, the CFO and Company
Secretary of the Company, who reports directly to the Board. Several
department heads of the Company met with the internal control
department regularly to ensure a sound internal control system is in
place and maintained. To enhance the knowledge of relevant staff of
the Group, training will be provided to them in the matter of relevant
rules and applicable laws as and when appropriate.

With reference to the “"The Standard for Enterprise Internal Control”
and “Implementation Guidelines for Enterprise Internal Control”, the
internal control department has performed internal control reviews
covering most of the key controls including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions. The Company
considered that the internal control department is sufficient at this
moment and will consider establishing an internal audit function in the
future if necessary.

Also, management has analysed the control environment and risk
assessment, assessed the various controls implemented and agreed
with the Board on the scope of review over the system of internal
controls. The approach of the review includes discussion with relevant
management and staff members, reviewing relevant documentation of
the internal control system and evaluating findings on any deficiencies
in the design of the internal controls and developing recommendations
for improvement, where appropriate.

Management has reported the results of the reviews to the Audit
Committee for its evaluation on the effectiveness of the system.
Meetings were held by the Audit Committee to discuss the findings
and the results of the reviews which were endorsed for reporting
to the Board. The Board is satisfied that, based on the information
supplied, coupled with its own observations and with the assistance
of the Audit Committee, the present internal controls and risk
management processes are satisfactory for the nature and size of the
Group's operations and business. The Board will continue to ensure
that appropriate review of the systems and procedures is being carried
out by management from time to time to maintain a high standard
of internal control and will make appropriate changes to the internal
control system, if necessary.

During the year, the Company has engaged PricewaterhouseCoopers
Consultants (Shenzhen) Limited, Shanghai Branch (“PwC Consultants”)
to carry out a risk assessment exercise of the Company. PwC
Consultants had provided training to the management team regarding
the generally adopted risk assessment methodology; conducted private
interviews with senior management; facilitated management on the
risks identification and assessment process; and guided management on
the formulation of risk management strategies.
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Inside information

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company

- is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the SFO
and the overriding principle that information which is expected
to be inside information should be announced once it is the
subject of a decision;

- has set up an inside information control team to supervise inside
information matters and report to the Board in a timely manner;

- has implemented its own policy and reporting system based
on Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission; and

- has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs.

Directors’ and officers’ liability

The Company has renewed Directors’ and Officers’ liabilities insurance
for all the Directors and senior management of the Company for the
year 2012/2013. The insurance covers them against costs, charges,
expenses and liabilities incurred arising out of corporate activities.

Communications with Shareholders

The Directors recognise the importance of long-term support from
the shareholders of the Company. The Board highly respects the
shareholders’ rights to express their views and appreciates their
suggestions to the Company.

Our investor relations activities include:

- regular meetings (one-to-one/group meetings, roadshows or site
visits) with analysts and investors;

- conferences with analysts and the press to announce the
Company’s results;

- the holding of an AGM which provides an opportunity for the
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board;
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- the publication of announcements, interim reports, annual reports
and/or circulars on a timely basis via the Company’s and the Stock
Exchange’s websites; and

the availability of the latest information of the Group on the
Company’s website.

There is no change in the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association during the year ended 31 December 2012.

Shareholder’s Rights
The AGM provides opportunities for the shareholders to meet and raise
questions to our Directors, management and the external auditor.

The Company will arrange for the Chairman of the Board and the
respective chairman of each of the Board Committees to attend the
AGM to exchange views with shareholders and answer their questions.

Any shareholder is encouraged and entitled to attend the AGM,
provided that their shares have been recorded in the register of
members of the Company. The notice of AGM will be given to all
shareholders at least 20 clear business days or 21 clear days (whichever is
longer) before the meeting.

The last annual general meeting of the Company was the 2012 annual
general meeting (“2012 AGM"), held on 14 May 2012 at The Exchange
Auditorium, The Exchange Exhibition Hall, 1/F., One and Two Exchange
Square, Central, Hong Kong. All Directors and the external auditor of
the Company, BDO Limited, attended the 2012 AGM.

At the 2012 AGM, separate resolutions including declaration of final
dividend, the re-election of Directors, the re-appointment of auditor,
the authorisation to grant the general mandate to issue and repurchase
of shares were proposed. The Company adopted poll voting for all
resolutions.

All resolutions put to shareholders at the 2012 AGM were passed. The
Company’s Hong Kong Share Registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
was appointed as scrutineers to monitor and count the poll votes cast
at that meeting. The results of the voting by poll were declared at the
meeting and published on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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The way by which shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM")

The Directors, notwithstanding anything in the Company’s articles of
association shall, on the requisition of shareholders holding at the date
of the deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of such of the
paid-up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company, forthwith proceed duly to convene an EGM.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must be
signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at
the Company’s principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or more
requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s Share Registrars and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, the
Company Secretary will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the EGM.

If the Directors do not within twenty-one days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists may themselves convene a meeting, but any meeting so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of two months from the
said date.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The enquiries must be in writing with contact information of the
requisitionists and deposited at the Company Secretary at the
Company'’s principal place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The procedures for making proposals at Shareholders’ Meetings

To put forward proposals at an AGM or EGM, the shareholders should
submit a written notice of those proposals with detailed contact
information to the Company Secretary at the Company’s principal
place of business at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po Chun Chambers, 189
Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The request will be verified with
the Company’s Share Registrars and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the
Board to include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting.
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The notice period to be given to all shareholders for consideration of
the proposal raised by the shareholders concerned at an AGM or EGM
varies according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

. At least 14 days’ notice (the notice period must include 10
business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes an ordinary
resolution of the Company in an EGM.

° At least 21 days’ notice (the notice period must include 20
business days) in writing if the proposal constitutes a special
resolution of the Company in an EGM or any resolution of the
Company in an AGM.

Investor Relations Contacts

The Company values feedbacks from shareholders, investors and the
public. Enquiries and proposals are welcome and can be put to the
Company via the following means:

Hong Kong

Please contract our Company Secretary at:

By phone : (852) 2828 9285

By post : Suite 1203-4, 12/F., Li Po Chun Chambers,
189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

By e-mail : ir@lansen.com.cn

The PRC

Please contract our Investor Relations Department at:

By phone : (86) 755 2532 3050

By post : Room 1804, Tower D, KK100, 139 Hongbao Road,
Luohu District, Shenzhen, PRC
(Post code 518001)

By e-mail : ir@lansen.com.cn

The latest investor relations information is available on the Company’s
website at www.lansen.com.cn.
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BDO Limited
BRI EREGHAERAARAR

Tel: +852 2218 8288 25" Floor Wing On Centre
Fax: +852 2815 2239 111 Connaught Road Central
www.bdo.com.hk Hong Kong

5E 0 +8522218 8288 ERBTrEPIR

fHE | +85228152239 K I 258

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lansen
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 53 to 124, which comprise
the consolidated and company statements of financial position as at
31 December 2012, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

BDO Limited, a Hong Kong limited company, is a member of BDO International Limited, a UK company limited by guarantee,
and forms part of the international BDO network of independent member firms.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a true
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2012 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Tsui Fong
Practising Certificate Number: P05440

Hong Kong, 27 March 2013
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—E-—F %
2012 2011
BfaE FERT F=
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
WA Revenue 6 93,844 74,475
FHE R Cost of sales (39,420) (30,088)
EX Gross profit 54,424 44,387
E A Other income 6 2,831 2,745
HE DM Selling and distribution expenses (31,258) (24,796)
TS Administrative expenses (9,828) (8,670)
R Profit from operations 8 16,169 13,666
BT A Finance costs 9 (1,005) (459)
FE(RERS N TIHIBRTIE % K] Share of post-tax profit of an associate 1,402 1,941
B TS A E Profit before income tax 16,566 15,148
PSR F =& Income tax expense 11 (2,568) (2,695)
FERA Profit for the year 13,998 12,453
Hit2E W= Other comprehensive income
BMEBINEBGEE 2 Exchange differences arising on
PE N =58 translation of foreign operations 827 4,767
FEEMEEKE Other comprehensive income for
(HBRFIA) the year, net of tax 827 4,767
FEXENZEE Total comprehensive income for
the year 14,825 17,220
AATEE AEGEF Profit attributable to owners of
the Company 12 13,998 12,453
RATEE AEN Total comprehensive income
2HEKRZEE attributable to owners of
the Company 14,825 17,220
SREF-BEARE®EE Earnings per share - basic and
diluted 14 3.4 cents &AL 3.0 centsZEAl
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—E-—F %
2012 2011
BfaE FERT FET
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
ME - BB NERE Property, plant and equipment 16 29,667 22,827
TEf T A E A Prepaid land lease payment 17 2,437 2,476
M AE Intangible assets 18 11,164 9,907
Bk Goodwill 19 6,824 6,824
i NI Interest in an associate 20 32,031 27,684
82,123 69,718
REBEE Current assets
78 Inventories 21 11,823 9,576
B 5 N E MW IR Trade and other receivables 22 55,152 42,216
YafT+ AR E TR IE Prepaid land lease payment 17 58 57
BEEIRIRITIFK Pledged bank deposits 23 8,325 7,286
RekREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 11,381 15,592
86,739 74,727
mEE Total assets 168,862 144,445
EEREE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BEXRK#E Capital and reserves
AAREE AELER Equity attributable to owners
of the Company
A& Share capital 24 4,150 4,150
17 % (B Share premium 25 49,568 58,330
YSNEEE Foreign exchange reserve 25 9,981 9,154
JETE I Statutory reserve 25 5,347 3,986
RE R Retained profits 36,357 23,720
e Total equity 105,403 99,340
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MR=ZF—=F+=H=+—H Asat 31 December 2012

—E-—F %
2012 2011
MI5E FERT FET
Notes Us$'000 Us$'000

RBEE Non-current liabilities
R Borrowings 26 - 9,157
BEFIARE Deferred tax liabilities 27 181 181
181 9,338

REBAE Current liabilities

P Borrowings 26 42,255 19,226
mEHIEAE Current tax liabilities 968 1,303
B 5 NEMERTIE Trade and other payables 28 20,055 15,238
63,278 35,767
BEE Total liabilities 63,459 45,105
BERKREME Total equity and liabilities 168,862 144,445
REBEEZFE Net current assets 23,461 38,960
HWEERRBARS Total assets less current liabilities 105,584 108,678

FES3EI4EMUEMEER T —=F=A
“tHrHESEEIERFRETIE  WHATA

ITHREERE

EF

Director

XU Jun

The financial statements on pages 53 to 124 were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 27 March 2013 and

are signed on its behalf by:

EZE
Director
BEM®R
YIP Pui Ling, Rebecca

Annual Report 2012
—E-CHFFR

55



56

A4 B8 B AR B PR A A
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

T ISR 2R
Statement of Financial Position

MR=ZF—=F+=H=+—H Asat 31 December 2012

—E——F —E——F
2012 2011
5T FEx FET
Notes US$'000 USs$'000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
NN 5 Interest in a subsidiary 15 25,020 25 020
REBEE Current assets
Ry NGIE S ] Amount due from a subsidiary 15 27,248 36,358
SEENE O] Prepayments 29 29
RekREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 23 3 17
27,280 36,404
BEE Total assets 52,300 61,424
EzkEE EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
BEAXR#E Capital and reserves
AABEE ANELER Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
R& 2R Share capital 24 4,150 4,150
[Srapati=t Share premium 25 49,568 58,330
Z:tEiE Accumulated losses 25 (1,596) (1,222)
R Total equity 52,122 61,258
REBAE Current liabilities
JEETFIE Accruals 28 178 166
FEN=Ri Total liabilities 178 166
BERSRERE Total equity and liabilities 52,300 61,424
RBEEZE Net current assets 27,102 36,238
BEERRBAR Total assets less current liabilities 52,122 61,258
EE EE
Director Director
#®E =3k
XU Jun YIP Pui Ling, Rebecca
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HEZZ——F+=A=1+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E-—F %
2012 2011
FErR F=
Us$'000 Us$'000
RELEEBENEESRE Cash flows from operating activities
& P15 A5 A i 1) Profit before income tax 16,566 15,148
R Adjustments for:
BRI RN Finance costs recognised 1,005 459
F B A Interest income (288) (204)
FEAGESE = R B BR B AE & A Share of post-tax profit of an associate (1,402) (1,941)
2 S REWGRIBERERE Provision for impairment of trade
receivables 126 85
H At EUGRIRRE (Reversal of)/Provision for impairment of
(BE),BH other receivables ) 9
Y% - BEMERETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 1,520 1,291
TS Aot 70 B SR IR 8 Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payment 62 61
HEWE - BEREEEE Losses on disposals of property, plant
and equipment 1 9
B EE Write off of intangible assets - 128
& B Amortisation of intangible assets 582 285
PREFEREERD),#iE (Reversal of)/Provision for impairment of
obsolete inventories (21) 9
BB EENR 2 K EEHF Operating profit before working capital
changes 18,150 15,339
&1 Increase in inventories (2,109) (3,112)
B 5 N E b pE Uk SR IE g hn Increase in trade and other receivables (9,556) (11,624)
B 5 I E A FE T FRIAIE N Increase in trade and other payables 4,616 6,537
HEEFHE Cash generated from operations 11,101 7,140
=ENEAIIS) Interest paid (1,313) (522)
DTSR Income tax paid (2,903) (2,752)
AT B EE S 7 BB )FER Net cash generated from operating
activities 6,885 3,866
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HEZZ——F+=A=1+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012

—E-—F %
2012 2011
FErR F=
Us$'000 Us$'000
REREFB2HERE Cash flows from investing activities
DRI TE L N Increase in pledged bank deposits (958) (7,016)
5 3 L Ath B W 3% N Increase in pledged other receivables (3,261) -
BEWE  MBENMEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (7,767) (3,192)
BERLEE Purchase of intangible assets (1,731) (982)
HEME  BEK Proceeds from disposals of property,
RABFTISFHIA plant and equipment 9 6
EEBE N AEIMER Purchase of additional interest in
an associate (2,202) -
miEE NG EE Capital contribution to an associate (4,637) (399)
U B B N B B Dividend received from an associate 4,174 359
BHFE Interest received 288 204
KETBTHH 2 F5E Net cash used in investing activities (16,085) (11,020)
REMETHRERE Cash flows from financing activities
EEFS A Proceeds from borrowings 34,168 22,194
BIEEEFA Repayment of borrowings (20,500) (4,875)
B E Dividends paid (8,762) (10,145)
BEFEEL R FE Net cash generated from financing activities 4,906 7,174
RekReFBYWF Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
CrA), /10 equivalents (4,294) 20
FNRE LIREFED Cash and cash equivalents at beginning
of year 15,592 14,827
[ERGE) e Effects of exchange rate changes 83 745
ERRERBSEEY Cash and cash equivalents at end
of year 11,381 15,592
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HEZZ——F+=A=1+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE  ROEE  NERE  RERE  REEA g

Foreign
Share Share  exchange Statutory Retained Total
capital premium reserve reserve profits equity

R TET TET TET TET TET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000

BE-F——%F+= Yearended 31 December 2011

A=1t—HLEFE
W-Z——F—F—H& Balance at 1 January 2011

& 4,150 68,475 4,387 1,311 13,942 92,265
B8 (P =E13) Dividends (note 13) - (10,145) - - - (10,145)
BER NETTR S Transactions with owners - (10,145) - - - (10,145)
FREHM Profit for the year - - - - 12,453 12,453
Htv 2 Other comprehensive income - - 4,767 - - 4,767
FRNEEWARE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 4,767 - 12,453 17,220
ERELERE Appropriations to statutory reserve - - - 2,675 (2,675) -

—T—%+ZA Balance at 31 December 2011

:‘f'_ ==k 4,150 58,330 9,154 3,986 23,720 99,340
HE-Z--%4+=H Yearended 31 December 2012

=t-ALEE

——%—H—HA Balance at 1 January 2012

Ee 4,150 58,330 9,154 3,986 23,720 99,340
%8 (FTsE13) Dividends (note 13) = (8,762) - - - (8,762)
HEFANETRS Transactions with owners - (8,762) - - - (8,762)
EREF| Profit for the year - - - - 13,998 13,998
Htb 2z Other comprehensive income - - 827 - - 827
FERNEEWAE Total comprehensive income for the year - - 827 - 13,998 14,825
EBRTL TG Appropriations to statutory reserve - - - 1,361 (1,361) -

—F+—-A Balance at 31 December 2012
‘+ BL0FEA 4,150 49,568 9,981 5,347 36,357 105,403
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HEZZ——F+=A=1+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012
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Corporate Information

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted limited liability company incorporated in Cayman Islands
on 10 September 2009 and its shares have been listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) since 7 May 2010. The Company's registered
office is located at Clifton House, 75 Fort Street P. O. Box 1350,
Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands. The Company’s
principal place of business is located at Suites 1203-4, 12/F, Li Po
Chun Chambers, 189 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries (together with
the Company referred to as the “Group”) are manufacturing and
trading of pharmaceutical products. The principal activities of the
Group are carried out in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC")
and are set out in note 32. There were no significant changes in
the Group's operations during the year.

The Company is a subsidiary of Cathay International Holdings
Limited (“CIH"), a company incorporated in Bermuda and whose
shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange. The directors
consider the ultimate holding company to be Cathay International
Enterprises Limited which is incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI").

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2012
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 27 March
2013.

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated Financial
Statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards and Interpretations
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis. The measurement bases are fully described
in the accounting policies set out below. The consolidated
financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (“US$")
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs

New and revised standards adopted by the Group

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
("new and revised IFRSs") issued by the IASB, which are
effective for the Group's financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2012:

Amendments to IFRS 1 Severe Hyperinflation and
Removal of Fixed Dates for
First-time Adopters

Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets

Deferred tax — Recovery of

Underlying Assets

Amendments to IFRS 7

Amendments to International
Accounting Standard
("IAS") 12

Except as explained below, the adoption of these
amendments has no material impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 7 — Disclosures — Transfers of Financial
Assets

The amendments to IFRS 7 expand the disclosure
requirements for transfer transactions of financial assets,
in particular where the reporting entity has continuing
involvement in financial assets that it has derecognised.
The newly required disclosures allow users of financial
statements to better understand the risks to which the
reporting entity remains exposed. And such information is
relevant in assessing the amount, timing and uncertainty of
the entity’s future cash flows.

The Group has discounted certain of its bills receivables
with recourse (note 22). As the Group retained the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the discounted
bills receivables, the transfer transactions did not meet
the requirements of IAS 39 for de-recognition. The bills
receivables remained as the Group’s financial assets with the
cash received being recognised as asset-backed borrowings
(note 26). The financial statements for the current period
include additional disclosures describing the nature of the
relationship between the discounted bills receivables and
the associated financial liabilities, including restrictions on
the Group’s use of the bills receivables arising from the
discounting arrangements.
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Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective

The following new and revised IFRSs have been issued, but
are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group.

Amendments to IFRSs

Amendments to IFRS 7
Amendments to IFRS 1
Amendments to IFRS 10,

IFRS 12 and IAS 27 (2011)

IFRS 9

IFRS 10
IFRS 11
IFRS 12

IFRS 13
Amendments to

IAS 1 (Revised)
Amendments to IAS 32
IAS 19 (2011)
|AS 27 (2011)

IAS 28 (2011)

IFRIC - Int 20

Annual Improvements 2009-2011
Cycle?

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities?
Government Loans?

Investment Entities?

Financial Instruments?
Consolidated Financial Statements?
Joint Arrangements?
Disclosure of Interests in

Other Entities?

Fair Value Measurement?
Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income!
Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities3
Employee Benefits?

Separate Financial Statements?

Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures?

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015
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Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are

not yet effective (Continued)
Information on new and revised IFRSs that are expected to
affect the Group is as follows:

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

IFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of phase
| of a comprehensive project to entirely replace IAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. This
phase focuses on the classification and measurement of
financial assets. Instead of classifying financial assets into
four categories, an entity shall classify financial assets as
subsequently measured at either amortised cost or fair
value, on the basis of both the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of I1AS 39.

In October 2010, the IASB issued additions to IFRS 9
to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”) and
incorporated in IFRS 9 the current derecognition principles of
financial instruments of IAS 39. Most of the Additions were
carried forward unchanged from IAS 39, while changes were
made to the measurement of financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option
("FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of change
in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes
in credit risk must be presented in other comprehensive
income (“OCI"). The remainder of the change in fair value
is presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair
value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in OCI
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or
loss. However, loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts which have been designated under the FVO are
scoped out of the Additions.

IAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by IFRS 9 in its entirety.
Before this entire replacement, the guidance in IAS 39
on hedge accounting and impairment of financial assets
continues to apply.
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Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

New and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial Statements

IFRS 10 introduces a single control model for consolidation
of all investee entities. An investor has control when it has
power over the investee (whether or not that power is used
in practice), exposure or rights to variable returns from the
investee and the ability to use the power over the investee
to affect those returns. IFRS 10 contains extensive guidance
on the assessment of control. For example, the standard
introduces the concept of “de facto” control where an
investor can control an investee while holding less than 50%
of the investee’s voting rights in circumstances where its
voting interest is of sufficiently dominant size relative to the
size and dispersion of those of other individual shareholders
to give it power over the investee. Potential voting rights
are considered in the analysis of control only when these
are substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical ability to
exercise them. The standard explicitly requires an assessment
of whether an investor with decision making rights is acting
as principal or agent and also whether other parties with
decision making rights are acting as agents of the investor.
An agent is engaged to act on behalf of and for the
benefit of another party and therefore does not control the
investee when it exercises its decision making authority. The
implementation of IFRS 10 may result in changes in those
entities which are regarded as being controlled by the Group
and are therefore consolidated in the financial statements.
The accounting requirements in the existing IAS 27 on
other consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. IFRS 10 is applied retrospectively subject to
certain transitional provisions.
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Adoption of New and Revised IFRSs (Continued)

3.2 New and revised IFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective (Continued)
IFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

IFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the disclosures
requirements about interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint arrangements. It also introduces new disclosure
requirements, including those related to unconsolidated
structured entities. The general objective of the standard
is to enable users of financial statements to evaluate the
nature and risks of a reporting entity’s interests in other
entities and the effects of those interests on the reporting
entity’s financial statements.

The directors are in the process of making an assessment of
the potential impact of these new and revised IFRSs and so
far concluded that the application of these new and revised
IFRSs will have no material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the
preparation of these financial statements are summarised below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented unless otherwise stated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition and up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line
with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated in full on consolidation.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group has the power to control the financial and
operating policies so as to obtain benefits from their activities. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when assessing whether
the Group controls another entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interest in a
subsidiary is carried at cost less any impairment losses. The results
of the subsidiary are accounted for by the Company on the basis
of dividends received and receivable at the reporting date. All
dividends whether received out of the investee’s pre or post-
acquisition profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee but not control or
joint control over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method whereby
they are initially recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
change in the associates’ net assets except that losses in excess
of the Group's interest in the associate are not recognised unless
there is an obligation to make good those losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the Group
and its associate are recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interest in the associate. The investor’s share in the
associate’s profits and losses resulting from these transactions is
eliminated against the carrying value of the associate.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value of the
Group's share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities acquired is capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of the associate and the entire carrying amount of the
investment is subject to impairment test, by comparing the
carrying amount with its recoverable amount, which is higher of
value in use and fair value less costs to sell.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised at cost being the excess of the
aggregate of consideration transferred and the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests over the fair value of identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired.

Where the fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities exceed the fair value of consideration paid,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition date,
after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an
acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-generating
units (“CGUs") that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the acquisition. A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, and whenever there is an
indication that the unit may be impaired.

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year, the CGU
to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment
before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the unit,
the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets
of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount to each
asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in
profit or loss and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under construction
as described below) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its purchase
price and the costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to write
off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment (other
than properties under construction) less their estimated residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, estimated residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for
on a prospective basis. The major categories of property, plant
and equipment are depreciated as follows:

Building and plant 20-50 years
Machinery 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 5-12 years
Furniture and equipment ~ 5-15 years

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or
administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Costs include professional fees and, for qualifying
assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Group'’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

Prepaid land lease payment

Prepaid land lease payment represent up-front payments to
acquire long term interest in the usage of land. The payments are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on straight-line method over the
lease terms.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill) and research and
development activities

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are recognised initially at
cost. After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite useful
lives are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is provided on straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives. Amortisation commences when the intangible assets
are available for use. The amortisation expense is recognised in
profit or loss and included in administrative expenses.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less
any impairment losses.

Research and development costs

An intangible asset arising from development expenditure on
an individual project is recognised, provided that they meet the
following recognition requirements:

o demonstration of technical feasibility of completing the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

o there is intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

o the Group’s ability to use or sell the intangible asset is
demonstrated;

o the intangible asset will generate probable economic
benefits through internal use or sale;

° sufficient technical, financial and other resources are
available for completion; and

o the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset can be
reliably measured.

Development expenditure which does not meet the above criteria
and expenditure on the research phase of internal projects are
recognised in profit or loss when incurred.

Capitalised development costs that have a finite useful life are
amortised from the commencement of the commercial production
of the product on straight-line method over the period of its
expected benefit. The amortisation expense is recognised in
profit or loss and included in administrative expenses. Capitalised
development costs with indefinite useful lives are tested for
impairment annually.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets (other than
goodwill)

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets
not yet available for use are tested for impairment annually by
comparing their carrying amounts with their recoverable amounts,
irrespective of whether there is any indication that they may be
impaired.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets that have a finite
useful life to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order
to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to
which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated
to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the assets.

If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at
a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss of tangible and intangible assets (other
than goodwill) subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but to the extent that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of any depreciation or amortisation, had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
Company/Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate,
on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets
are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace concerned.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These (including trade and other receivables, pledged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents) are carried at
amortised cost using effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at the
end of the reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where
there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.

For financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

o breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest
and principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties; or

o a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment in an equity instrument below its cost.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade and other
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually
are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables
could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio
past the average credit period of six months to one year, and
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes in
the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade and other receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or
loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company/
Group are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including borrowings and trade and other
payables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets
are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received
and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.
Cost is calculated using the weighted average method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less all estimated costs of completion
and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents represent cash at banks and in
hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term highly liquid
investment with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold
in the normal course of business and the use by others of the
Group's assets yielding interest, net of discounts. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
revenue and costs, if applicable, can be reliably measured, revenue
is recognised as follows:
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Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised on transfer of risks and
rewards of ownership, which is at the time of delivery and the title
is passed to customer.

Interest income is accrued on time basis on the principal
outstanding at effective interest rate.

Income taxes
Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary activities
adjusted for items that are non-assessable or disallowable for
income tax purposes and is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for tax
purposes. Except for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax
liabilities are recognised for all temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the assets or liabilities is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and an associate,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when they
relate to items recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Income taxes (Continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are presented in net if,
and only if,

(@) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
in net if, and only if,

(@)  the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i) different taxable entities which intend either to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or recovered.

Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the Company/group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which it/they operate(s) (the “functional currency”)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions occur.
Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated at
the rates ruling at the end of reporting period. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at
fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items
in respect of which gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income, in which case, the exchange differences
are also recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e.
US$) at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange
rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case, the
rates approximating to those ruling when the transactions took
place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated at the rate ruling at the end of reporting period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as foreign
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative exchange
differences recognised in the foreign exchange reserve relating to
that operation up to the date of disposal are reclassified to profit
or loss as part of the profit or loss on disposal.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the term of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are recognised
in profit or loss on straight-line method over the lease term. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integrated part of the
total rental expense, over the term of the lease.

Retirement benefit costs
Retirement benefits to employees are provided through defined
contribution plans.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit plan
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (“MPF
Scheme”), for all of its employees who are eligible to participate in
the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries or the maximum mandatory
contribution as required by the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in
the PRC are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries
are required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension scheme.

The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement
benefit scheme is to make the specified contributions. The
contributions recognised in respect to defined contribution benefit
plans are expenses as they fall due. Liabilities and assets may be
recognised if underpayment or prepayment has occurred and are
included in current liabilities or current assets as they are normally
of a short term nature.

Borrowings costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which require
a substantial period of time to be ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale. Income earned on temporary investments of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.
Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the
costs that they are intended to compensate. Government grants
relating to the purchase of assets are included in liabilities as
deferred government grants in the statement of financial position
and are recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over
the expected lives of the related assets.
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Government grants (Continued)

Government grants relating to income is presented in gross under
“Other income” in the statement of comprehensive income.

Related parties
(@) A person or a close member to that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member);

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced by,
that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares segment
information based on the regular internal financial information
reported to the executive directors for their decisions about
resources allocation to the Group’s business components and for
their review of the performance of those components.

The measurement policies the Group uses for reporting segments
under IFRS 8 are the same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under IFRS, except that:

o share of results of associate accounted for using equity
method

o income tax

o finance costs

o corporate income and expenses which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating

segment are not included in arriving at the operating results
of the operating segment.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

Impairment of trade and other receivables is made based on
assessment of the recoverability of receivables from debtors. The
identification of the impairment requires management judgements
and estimates where the actual outcome or expectation in future
is different from the original estimate, such differences will impact
the carrying value of the receivables and impairment losses/
reversal of impairment losses in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.

Useful lives of intangible assets

The management estimates the development costs, which
represented the intellectual property rights generated internally in
pharmaceutical industry, have indefinite useful lives as they believe
that there is no foreseeable limit on the period of time over which
these intellectual property rights is expected to provide cash flows
and these intellectual property rights can be renewable in a period
of time at minimal cost and the products are continuing in the
market.

The estimated useful lives of the exclusive distribution rights
and technical know-how were made by the management
with reference to the legal limits on the use of the assets and
the estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of intangible assets. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations, changed
customer behavior and competitor actions in response to industry
cycles.

Management will increase the amortisation charge where useful
lives are less than previously estimated lives, or will recognise
impairment loss when future cash flows are less than expectation
and fall below the carrying amount of the intangible assets.
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Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements
(Continued)

Current income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of the provision
for taxation and the timing of payment of the related taxations.
There are many transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises taxes based on estimates of the
likely outcome with reference to current tax laws and practices.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which
such determination is made.

Impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of the value in use of the CGUs to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group to
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2012,
the carrying amount of goodwill is US$6,824,000. Details of the
recoverable amount calculation are disclosed in note 19.

Impairment of intangible assets

Impairment losses for intangible assets are recognised for the
amount by which the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use, are determined with reference to
the best information available at the end of the reporting date.
Changing the assumptions selected by the Group’s management
in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or the
operating and growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value used in
the impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial
position and results of operations. As at 31 December 2012, the
carrying amount of intangible assets is US$11,164,000.
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6. WARHMEKA 6. Revenue and Other Income
REBRFARRA(BIRERE L) EERE) An analysis of the Group's revenue, which is also the Group'’s
REMBABDTTAT turnover, and other income for the years are as follows:

—E——F —ET——%F

2012 2011

FErR FET

US$'000 US$'000

HEERBKBA Revenue from sales of goods 93,844 74,475
Higlr A Other income

IRITFBHA Bank interest income 288 204

BT & Government grants 2,169 2,290

Ht Others 374 251

2,831 2,745

ARER B Bl 5 BUF R A B & DA SR AT
AEEMERRRAZESRRERD - W
BN TG o

7. oHER 7.
MERMS - AEEREESEEAKYE
BBR - THUTREET2HNELS

% -
. ERYREHTE

o HftEm-e

i

The Group received grants from the local government in the PRC
as recognition of the Group’s performance and development of
high-technology pharmaceutical products. The grants received
were not subject to any conditions.

Segment Information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business
units based on its product types and has two reportable operating
segments as follows:

o Rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals;

o Other pharmaceuticals.
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Segment Information (Continued)

Management monitors the results of its business units separately
for the purpose of making decision about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on the results from the reportable segments as explained in
the table below.

BE-_Z——H+-A=+—HLFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

BRER
Bh T Hiu#m st
Rheumatic
specialty
prescription
western Other
pharmaceuticals pharmaceuticals Total
FER FER FEr
US$'000 US$'000 US$°000
AT 2P EWA Reportable segment revenue
—REHINEFHIUM A - Revenue from external customers 60,123 33,721 93,844
BT 2y Reportable segment profit 44,926 9,498 54,424

84

HE—_ET——F+_A=+—HIEFE For the year ended 31 December 2011
RRER}
By 7%k HhZm #E
Rheumatic
specialty
prescription
western Other
pharmaceuticals  pharmaceuticals Total
FET FET FET
US$'000 Us$'000 USs$'000
AT 2P EWA Reportable segment revenue
—REEINEFHIUW A — Revenue from external customers 49,138 25,337 74,475
AT 23D R Reportable segment profit 37,438 6,949 44,387
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7. HER(E) 7. Segment Information (Continued)
AEBKED T XENRBEHEPBREE The totals presented for the Group's operating segments
MEAREE F BRI ERIOT reconciled to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the

financial statements as follows:

—E——F —E——F
2012 2011
FErR FET
US$'000 Us$'000
IR EE Profit or loss
BT 2HOELEF Reportable segment profit 54,424 44,387
JEIRERE N BIMIBRTLEH R Share of post-tax profit of an associate 1,402 1,941
Efb R EWA Other income not allocated 2,831 2,745
HEf R DAY Other expenses not allocated (41,086) (33,466)
RN Finance costs (1,005) (459)
K ETIS R AT A Profit before income tax 16,566 15,148
BYR2RDEIBEFIES D EBEHER] - TiA) Reportable segment profit represents the gross profit by each
#ﬂ{‘fﬁ%t#&ﬂféﬁ ol M RIBFHE & segment. This is the measure reported to the executive directors
REtER% - for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment.
FRN - AEBRAERFHNISN(ZF—— During the year, 15% (2011: 12%) of the Group's revenue was
F:12%)REIEMER IHHBHHE—F derived from a single customer in the “other pharmaceuticals”
F-RMEHE  AEBEE S ERTIER segment. As at the reporting date, 21% (2011: 27%) of the
21%(ZF——F 1 27% ) RERZEF - Group's trade receivables was due from this customer.
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7.

7 EPER (R
REBMHOBABISETIIBE :

7.

Segment Information (Continued)
The Group's revenues are divided into the following geographical
areas:

—E——F —T—5F

2012 2011

FEx FET

US$'000 Us$'000

R (EE) The PRC (domicile) 90,156 73,148
BSEYN Overseas 3,688 1,327
93,844 74,475

EPHEAE ARHIRFRTEERD
fEREE - KRR SNFHEFSEMK
VR EERAR - MAKEEE I &
ERER - AEEHETZLE R TEEK
RIpAF B - Bt - A B R B s s 2
RISESSR[ G E D IFTARE MR M 5 AR
EARRENEEER -

RWESE - AREOFEFRDEES
AT E -

m
R T H T EF RS AR
SWREA - MLESIVEHAH -
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The geographical location of customers is based on the location
at which the services were provided or the goods delivered. The
Company is an investment holding company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands where the Group does not have any activities,
the Group has the majority of its operations and workforce in the
PRC, and therefore, the PRC is considered as the Group's country
of domicile for the purpose of the disclosures as required by IFRS
8 “Operating Segments”.

Almost all of the non-current assets of the Group were located in
the PRC in both years.

No segment assets or segment liabilities is presented as they are
not regularly provided to the executive directors.
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8. MEE M

AEBBL LR LM (GEA) T

8. Profit From Operations
The Group's profit from operations has been arrived at after

FIEFHE - charging/(crediting):
— —F——%F
2012 2011
FErR FET
US$'000 US$'000
ZEEBE Auditor's remuneration 168 161
M - ERREITE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 1,520 1,291
PREFERME (D), H#  (Reversal of)/Provision for impairment of
(K3E) obsolete inventories (note) 21) 9
B 5 R IR R E R Provision for impairment of trade
receivables 126 85
H b FEUFRIBERE (BE),~  (Reversal of)/Provision for impairment of
Bt other receivables ¢} 9
FE 5 a5 F 58 Net exchange gain (237) (261)
REFZHTERA Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses 38,199 29,149
T MIEFHLLTHERSY  Operating lease charges in respective of
land and building 446 479
RS R AN Research and development costs 928 1,019
HEME - MENEZBENER Losses on disposals of property, plant
and equipment 1 9
| A EM S Write off of intangible assets - 128
FEfF + #hFE & a8 Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payment 62 61
B AR Amortisation of intangible assets 582 285
ETRA(BIEEEEH) Staff costs (including directors’
remuneration)
—TERH® — Wages and salaries 7,708 6,276
— ERRMHKET S — Defined contribution plan 963 416
8,671 6,692
MizE © AR R EEIFAEEANRETFERERE I Note: The reversal of impairment of obsolete inventories arising from an increase in

HRMEETREEINSIE -

net realisable value was caused by the increase in estimated scrap value.
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9. BB 9. Finance Costs

—E——F —E——F
2012 2011
FEx FET
US$°000 US$'000

BN T FRNEREEN Interest on bank borrowings wholly
RITEEFE repayable within five years 1,313 522

B BT AR TIRER Less: Interest capitalised included in
BEAREFE construction in progress (308) (63)
1,005 459

10. EEMNHBRSH A THHEN

B
ENMENTFARBESNFHMARNT

10. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid
Individuals
Directors’ remuneration
The aggregate amount of remuneration paid and payable to the
directors of the Company are as follows:

e 2l BIREF
e ANEYEN sHEIMR et
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
and benefits benefit plans
Fees in kind contributions Total
TEx TEx TER TERn
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$’000
BE-E-——F Year ended 31 December 2012
+-A=+—-HLEE
WITES: Executive directors:
"E Xu Jun - 203 17 220
BER(R T ——F Liu Xiao Dong (resigned as at
+ZA+MAET) 14 December 2012) - 119 14 133
FENITES : Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 - - 39
26 Lee JinYi - - - -
nE Tang Jun - 8 - 8
sz Tao Fang Fang - - - _
Eims Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca - - _ _
BUERTES - Independent non-executive
directors:
BRECIE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 32 - - 32
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher 29 - - 29
i Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 31 - - 31
131 330 31 492
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10. EENABBRSH A LT HHME)

Individuals (Continued)

10. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

EEHFM(E) Directors’ remuneration (Continued)
e R RIRER
we - NEDERN HEIGER Bt
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
and benefits  benefit plans
Fees in kind  contributions Total
FTET = F=r FET
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 Us$'000
Bz-2——& Year ended 31 December 2011
TZA=+—-HLEE
BITES: Executive directors:
"5 Xu Jun - 209 15 224
=g Liu Xiao Dong - 117 12 129
FERTES - Non-executive directors:
Stephen Burnau Hunt Stephen Burnau Hunt 39 - - 39
ZEME Lee Jin Yi - - - _
HE Tang Jun - - _ _
ey Tao Fang Fang - - - _
s Yip Pui Ling, Rebecca . - _ _
BYIENTES Independent non-executive
directors:
Robert Peter Thian Robert Peter Thian (resigned as

(R=T——% at 10 February 2011)

ZRTHBE) 4 - - 4
FRECIE Chan Kee Huen, Michael 31 - - 31
Fritz Heinrich Horlacher Fritz Heinrich Horlacher

(RZZ2—%F (appointed as at

ZA+TREEZE) 10 February 2011) 26 - - 26
i Tang Chiu Ping, Raymond 29 - - 29

129 326 27 482
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10.

ESNABRRSHALHHME)

LEBEHAL
hEGERHFALEEARAMEER(ZF
——F @A) WENHMFER LA
TAOTRE - A FT=R(ZF——%F : =
F)BESHFALHFMABET

10. Remuneration of Directors and Five Highest Paid

Individuals (Continued)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals consisted of two directors (2011:
two) of the Company, details of whose remuneration are reflected
in the analysis presented above. Details of remuneration of the
remaining three (2011: three) highest paid individuals are as
follows:

—E-——F =%

2012 2011

FEx FET

Us$°000 Us$'000

e R NREMRET Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 316 313
RIKENET IR Retirement benefit plans contributions 24 20
#Et Total 340 333

ST LM EIFEEALOHHEMNFAT
S

The remuneration paid to each of the above non-director
individuals were within the following bands:

—E-=F =%
2012 2011
AH AE

No of individuals No of individuals

£%129,000% 7T

Nil = US$129,000

129,001 7T%193,500% 7T, US$129,001 - US$193,500 1 -

HE_Z——HF+-_A=+—HEKZ=ZZ
—— S+ -A=+—HItFE  HEES
HeEENRTMHFMLHE -

BEZT—F+-A=+t—HEK=F
——FtZA=t-HLFE  AKER
FABBEAEFHEAALEHRRFALS
NS - (ERMARKE K MARKEZ
O SR KB 1
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There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration for the years ended 31
December 2012 and 31 December 2011.

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 31 December
2011, no emolument was paid by the Group to the directors or
any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group, or compensation for loss of office during
the year.
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1. FREBiRX 11. Income Tax Expense
—E——fF =%
2012 2011
FEx FE
US$'000 Us$'000
& H IR Current tax

—FERPEMSHR( T — PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT")

Frig#il) 2,568 2,695

ERBEELENERTG MR IAD IRAKE
REFTAERGRDEERAERREAE -

BIEPBEPEMESTA(TDEMERE]D
NEE®mME > PEMBARNKERA
25% (LT ——F : 25%) °

Hbh—HEREESREELZFHESR
EEMBRENMBAR - ERER T
——FEEMIEINE25%NFEHEK o 5
—ERERTESHHREENMNE AT
B-Z-ZEF-A-BEZEHEI5%NER
EEMEHRE -

AEE-RMBARAIEBEELE R
BERESEREREMINE R EAEHR
% BEEEBEFERBERENERE
ENFEE BEME2ERBLEEME
B BERZFRFBMNEEMER AR
TN — T — = FED25% R ERH X -

RBEEMETE - RRARER - 5
ETEERBRREHNLEAIESR THE
BE  BERCAEEBENN RN 2
RHEERAER - ARE-—RAEFEAIER
REZXBNPEMBAR AT 2R HEE
FrS®t -

Tax on assessable profits arising in the PRC has been calculated at
the applicable rates of tax prevailing in the tax jurisdiction in which
the Group operates.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law"”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2011: 25%,).

One of the subsidiaries operated in Shenzhen Special Economic
Zone and enjoyed preferential EIT rates, its tax rate gradually
reached the standard rate at 25% in 2012. Another subsidiary
has been certified as a new high technology enterprise in the PRC
and enjoyed a preferential EIT rate of 15% starting from 1 January
2010.

A subsidiary of the Group is a wholly-owned foreign enterprise
in accordance with the Income Tax Law of the PRC for Enterprise
with Foreign Investment and Foreign Enterprises and is entitled
to full exemption from EIT for two years and a 50% reduction in
the following three years thereafter starting from the first profit
making year after offsetting prior years' tax losses, its tax rate will
reach the standard rate at 25% in 2013.

According to the EIT Law, its rules and regulations, enterprises that
engage in certain qualifying agricultural business are eligible for
certain tax benefits, including full EIT exemption on profits derived
from such business. A subsidiary of the Group in the PRC engaged
in qualifying agricultural business is entitled to full exemption of
EIT.
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11. FIEHAXZ(E)
ENFEREEGE 2 ERERATR
FrSRIATRFIMSEBR T

11. Income Tax Expense (Continued)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before income tax per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

—E——F —E——F

2012 2011

FErR FET

UsS$'000 Us$'000

TSR B R Profit before income tax 16,566 15,148
B ARNAEBRAER Tax on profit at the rates applicable

AR E A to the jurisdictions concerned 2,896 3,117

AR A S R IS R 2 Tax effect on non-deductible expenses 220 117
FEIEE L N RIRTI B FE)  Tax effect of share of post-tax profit

B e of an associate (231) (320)

BEFERENR Under-provision in respect of prior years 4 -

MEES Tax exemption (364) (219)

Hi Others 43 _

FRNAEHRFEX Income tax expense for the year 2,568 2,695

12. RNQTHEE AELER
A A NFEAE4RE 5 713,998,000
T (=& ——% 12,453,000 7T) F -
BB 374000FEF T (ZE——4F : 518
425,000 7T) ER AR B B HImE N E
1% o
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12. Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company
Of the consolidated profit attributable to the owners of the
Company of US$13,998,000 (2011: US$12,453,000), a loss of
US$374,000 (2011: a loss of US$425,000) has been dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company.
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14.

—Z——F+=FA=+—HIFE For the year ended 31 December 2012

BE 13. Dividends
—E-—F %
2012 2011
FER F=T
Us$'000 Us$'000
FRABRAR/DIKN Dividend recognised as
BE : distribution during the year:
Hh%8. 1178l 2012 interim dividend — HK8.11 cents
(#91.05241) (approximately US1.05 cents)
W_T——FHHRE per share 4,338 -
FHr8.28751 2011 final dividend — HK8.28 cents
(#91.073=41) (approximately US1.07 cents)
BT ——F KRS per share 4,424 -
Hh%8.0571L 2011 interim dividend — HK8.05 cents
(#91.032M1) (approximately US1.03 cents)
T ——FHERE per share - 4,293
SHE1.41FE00M 2010 final dividend — US1.41 cents
ZE-TFERERE per share - 5,852
8,762 10,145

RmERKRE  EFRERFRNEE_FT
——F+ A=+ —BIFEHKRER
B #1020 10 (#1.32 L) » &5
42,330,000 7T (#95,461,0003 L) (==
—F HEZZE——F+ZA=+—H
IEFERRBR B ATAR8.28E1U(491.07
) - HASKRERERERERSHE
% FAEE - EEARERERREHE
HAERABEE

BRER
BRERBRIZFNRREES AEIGER
& ) &2 415,000,0000 B # /TR0 (= F
——% : 415,000,0008% 8% 17 )5t E °

MRER R — I IR ERE R - &
SRR REREREFIEE -

14.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final dividend of
HK10.20 cents (approximately US1.32 cents), totally amounting to
HK$42,330,000 (approximately US$5,461,000) in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: final dividend of HK8.28
cents (approximately US1.07 cents) in respect of the year ended
31 December 2011) per share has been proposed by the directors
and is subject to approval by the shareholders in the forthcoming
general meeting. The proposed final dividends have not been
recognised as a liability at the reporting date.

Earnings Per Share

The calculation of the basic earnings per share is based on the
consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company and
415,000,000 shares in issue during the year (2011: 415,000,000
shares).

Diluted earnings per share is same as basic earnings per share as
there were no potential dilutive shares during the year and prior
year.
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15. RIE QAR 15. Interest in a Subsidiary
—g-=F —T——%F
2012 2011
FER F=T
US$'000 Us$'000
’E Investments
K ETRL - BAAR Unlisted shares, at cost 25,020 25,020
FEW KB AR RIAARER - RERARE The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest-free and
EREE EFRA - SHNEEESRE repayable on demand. The directors consider that the carrying
NFERE ° amount of the balance approximates its fair value.
16. ¥M1% - RERRZE 16. Property, Plant and Equipment
rEH Group
EFRERE K RE  KARKE ERIR st
Furniture
Building Motor and Construction
and plant ~ Machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total

e Txn e e e e
US$:000 US$000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000

R=Z——F—F—H At1January 2011

AR Cost 14,340 5822 855 1,219 855 23,091
ZitHE Accumulated depreciation (1,206) (1,407) (319) (362) - (3,94)
REFE Net carrying amount 13,134 4415 536 857 855 19,797
Hz-F——F Year ended 31 December 2011

+ZAZ+—ALEE
FNERFE Opening net carrying amount 13,134 4415 536 857 855 19,797
B AR Exchange adjustment 682 236 31 49 83 1,081
NE Additions 72 524 212 407 2,040 3,255
biis 3 Depreciation (503) (499) (74) (215) - (1,291)
EE Disposals - (3) (6) (6) - (15)
feEpTizES Transfer from construction in progress 288 184 - 2 (474) -
FREEFE Closing net carrying amount 13,673 4,857 699 1,094 2,504 22,827
RZE——F At 31 December 2011

+ZA=t-H
XA Cost 15,458 6,517 1,099 1,661 2,504 27,239
23t Accumulated depreciation (1,785) (1,660) (400) (567) - (4,412)
REFE Net carrying amount 13,673 4,857 699 1,094 2,504 22,827
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HEZZ——F+=A=1+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012

16. ¥% - BMERRE (&)

16. Property, Plant and Equipment (Continued)

rEBE(E) Group (Continued)
BFREE Ha RE RARRE HRIR st
Furniture
Building Motor and Construction
and plant ~ Machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
TEr TE TE TE TE TE
US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000 US§'000
Hz-Z-—F Year ended 31 December 2012
TZA=ZT-BILHE
FOREEE Opening net carrying amount 13,673 4,857 699 1,094 2,504 22,827
i 3 % Exchange adjustment 158 55 7 12 63 295
NE Additions " 540 134 352 7,038 8,075
nE Depreciation (546) (603) (111 (260) - (1,520)
EE Disposals - (5) (1) @) - (10)
NEETioEk Transfer from construction in progress 2,825 751 - 76 (3.652) -
FREHFE Closing net carrying amount 16,121 5,595 728 1,270 5,953 29,667
R-T-—% At 31 December 2012
+-A=t-H
A Cost 18,476 7,798 1,198 2,081 5953 35,506
ZiirE Accumulated depreciation (2,355) (2,203) (470) (811) - (5,839)
ERFE Net carrying amount 16,121 5,595 728 1,270 5,953 29,667

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—H  RKEEAE
12,778,000E€ T (Z&E——% : 7,679,000
EL)METHEDEFABSRTEE &
RITEE(MFE26) °

As at 31 December 2012, certain properties with a carrying
amount of US$12,778,000 (2011: US$7,679,000) were pledged

to secure the banking facilities and bank borrowings (note 26).
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17. FEA LA ERE 17. Prepaid Land Lease Payment
rEH Group
S S
2012 2011
FER FET
US$°000 US$'000

FAEHEIN - AT HH$FAE © Outside Hong Kong, held on:
— R HATA A — medium-term lease 2,495 2,533

S ST AREVEENREIESS  Less: Current portion included in
current assets (58) (57)

S ASERBEEMIERBNEES  Non-current portion included in

non-current assets 2,437 2,476

—E——F —ET——%F

2012 2011

FER F=T

US$°000 US$'000

FYREFE Opening net carrying amount 2,533 2,467
F R Amortisation for the year (62) 61)

PE 7 S EE Exchange adjustment 24 127

FREEEFE Closing net carrying amount 2,495 2,533

IRE{ERE Gross carrying amount 2,837 2,810
S Accumulated amortisation (342) (277)

REDEE Net carrying amount 2,495 2,533
R—ZE——F+—-HA=+—8 EEEAS As at 31 December 2012, certain prepaid land lease payment with
2,058,000 (= ——4 : 1,271,000% a carrying amount of US$2,058,000 (2011: US$1,271,000) were
70 E TIER + #hFRE FIE KT ARG pledged to secure the banking facilities and bank borrowings (note

SRITRE RIRITHRE (H3E26) 26).

96 Annual Report 2012
—T - FFR



BB ER AT

Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

BRI

Notes to the Financial Statements

HEZZ——F+=A=1+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012

18. BEE 18. Intangible Assets
rEH Group
BROBEE RNTEENE A% st
Exclusive
distribution Technical Development
rights know-how costs Total
FEx FET FET FET
US$'000 US$ 000 Us$'000 us$'000
(BizFa) (PFiF3Eb) (PiF3Ec)
(note a) (note b) (note ¢)
RZZT——F—H—H At1January 2011
[BEN Cost - 6,138 2,846 8,984
g Accumulated amortisation - - (122) (122)
REFE Net carrying amount - 6,138 2,724 8,862
HE-T——F Year ended 31 December 2011
+=A=+—-H
HFE
FOREFE Opening net carrying amount - 6,138 2,724 8,862
[ 5 Exchange adjustment 4 315 157 476
INE Additions 155 52 775 982
B Amortisation - (285) - (285)
BE Disposals - - (128) (128)
ERIREFE Closing net carrying amount 159 6,220 3,528 9,907
NZT—F At 31 December 2011
+-A=+-H
(BN Cost 159 6,512 3,656 10,327
Rt Accumulated amortisation - (292) (128) (420)
BREFE Net carrying amount 159 6,220 3,528 9,907
BEZZ—=F Year ended 31 December 2012
+=-A=+—H
FE
FEYEREFE Opening net carrying amount 159 6,220 3,528 9,907
BEE 3, S 28 Exchange adjustment 1 54 53 108
INE Additions - - 1,731 1,731
e Amortisation - (582) - (582)
FREMFE Closing net carrying amount 160 5,692 5,312 11,164
RZTE——F At 31 December 2012
+-A=+—H
[B%N Cost 160 6,576 5,441 12,177
REHEH Accumulated amortisation - (884) (129) (1,013)
RmEFE Net carrying amount 160 5,692 5312 11,164
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=

=

F2TXF

. BREE(E)

FEM (&)
GEX
@ RF-—F ARERLEBHIREER

NaEl RE thypharm SA(FTEI BME DI BR
ik

REGZ  NEBERRIWSS RETMER
BREY (%R )T BEBRTHEHEE 8
e BN RE05F o

RERBRD HERE  FERERERER
BEREEERER(HRXRRAERE %%EEEJ)
BN EREME((ENERFMEDE
B (6 & & 8 37 241,000 7T (A% R mAE

#1,500,0007T) ¢ oﬁfﬁﬁ@%iuu%ﬁu%g
EERRBEDERTMBAARRKIIE
1,043,000 7T (HH & % ﬁ AR #6,500,000
T0)  DIEHEREREBERE B S EEARE
(F7529) - BEHEZSHAMBREAE -
AR P T T o

R EERNHE REMAE REEBRHERR
s e Bg R BL T ©

B-Z——FtA B BRWERMBLRE
IRELESR A+ — R E o

RERA T BIRHERMNE
ERE([AER]) -

BB AR RO

EER/USANBERAERERFY - RE
ERBEENARERBHIRARSRTEN
HAFE E A] RPR B o 1 S A AT 0 — BR B
AR AEAE - MERN A EERED -

fis A EEE L IR RUE - B BR T (B FE S 2 HUR
M ER Y - AEREMFHOMBEET
BHETHE YRS ERRFEFRETFE
ERI - A PR ER A ERE R FHN
FSERERERE AR TRER A -
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—F+=HA=+—HI1EFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012

Intangible Assets (Continued)
Group (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

In 2011, the Group entered into an exclusive agreement with Shanghai
Ethypharm Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd and Ethypharm SA (collectively referred to
as "Ethypharm”).

Under the agreement, the Group has been granted the exclusive rights for the
marketing and distribution of ketoprofen/omeprazole slow-release capsules
(the “Drug”) in the PRC for a period of 10 years from the launch date of the
Drug.

Pursuant to the agreement of this exclusive distribution rights, the Group is
committed to pay US$241,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB1,500,000)
to Ethypharm on the date of the grant of the Import Drug License (“IDL")
from the State Food and Drug Administration (“SFDA"); and committed
to pay US$1,043,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB6,500,000) for the
clinical studies that required from SFDA to apply the IDL application. The
consideration of the distribution rights had been disclosed as commitment at
the end of the reporting date (note 29). Up to the date of approval for these
consolidated financial statements, the registration process is still in progress.

Technical know-how mainly represents techniques and formulae acquired for
the development and production of oral disintegrating tablets.

With effect from 1 July 2011, technical know-how had been amortised on a
straight-line basis over 11 years.

Development costs mainly represent intellectual property rights (“IPR")
generated internally for the pharmaceutical technology.

The directors consider these IPRs have indefinite useful lives as there is no
foreseeable limit on the period of time over which the IPR in pharmaceutical
industry is expected to provide cash flows. These IPR can be renewable in a
period of time at minimal cost and the products are continuing in the market.

If the IPR becomes impaired, the carrying amounts of the asset should be
written down or written off immediately to expense. IPR with indefinite useful
lives is not amortised and are tested for impairment annually at each financial
year end or more frequently if there are indications that IPR with indefinite
useful lives might be impaired.
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19.

(SRS 19. Goodwill
TEE Group
—E-=F —E——F
2012 2011
FER FET
US$'000 Us$'000
FREE Carrying amount 6,824 6,824

AEER _TTRFRBERIEHER
RAR(TEEE])RAEBECRINAE
RAB(RINAE]D - ZERZANES
FDEARR ©

AEERSEYRFEFRIBHELETF
FEORER B - e B BF R BUR R B A BER
B - R ETHEITRERH -

OREREME  BERIEE—EARS
ELEM  BRIBEXBARENREERR
BREMBHAEERNMB AR - HES
BERED N RRF RIS -

PR eEAEGAIRE S ERERERE
EERBERERBAnT

IR A B A A W S R AE B E
AFEAEE - R EEERERNEERE
BHERRAFHNMBEENERE SR
EFRBAR %N FTRE(ZF——F :
10%) - BBAFHMz RS RERALER
KO%ER - WIREXT FABBEEIER
o EREBEMBEENEBEIERRIIE
RERAMHEMG  BHRERE
HERENE - GRAMGF HERZEMS
EXRBEAREEBHMBSERNEL - &
BERE SRR AELRENGE
e reSyAREEREH AT DA
B

BE-_E——F+-_A=+—HI1IEE -
AEBERERTE  EMEEHEENE:
BB EE -

The Group acquired Ningbo Liwah Pharmaceutical Company
Limited (“Ningbo Liwah”) and Lansen Medicine (Shenzhen)
Company Limited (“Shenzhen Lansen”) in 2005. These
transactions have been accounted for by the acquisition method
of accounting.

The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment at each financial
year end, or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill
might be impaired.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to one CGU, including subsidiaries with principal
activities of manufacturing and trading of rheumatic specialty
prescription western pharmaceutical products which is identical to
the “Rheumatic specialty prescription western pharmaceuticals”
under operating segment.

The basis of the recoverable amounts of the above CGU and its
major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

The recoverable amount of this CGU has been determined based
on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period, and discount rate of 12% (2011:
10%). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond
the five-year period is 0% which does not exceed the long-
term growth rate. Other key assumptions for the value in use
calculations relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted sales and gross margin, such estimation
is based on the unit’'s past performance and management’s
expectations for the market development. Management believes
that any reasonably possible change in any of these assumptions
would not cause the aggregate carrying amount to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2012, management of the
Group determines that there are no impairments of any of its CGU
containing goodwill.
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REE DTS 20. Interest in an Associate
TEE Group

—F—=F —T—F
2012 2011
FEx F=ET
US$’000 Us$'000
JEIEEEFE Share of net assets 13,347 9,179
EES Goodwill 18,684 18,505
32,031 27,684

FHoA=T—A  AEERATHER
A

As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Group had
interests in the following associate:

AEBFRFER

NEAEB EaioAve:uL EXEENLH TEEK

Place of

Proportion of
nominal value of
registered capital

Name of entity incorporation held by the Group Principal activity

=B-=F —TF
2012 2011

AT AR HERHBRAR ([RIAL]) &+
Zhejiang Starry Pharmaceutical The PRC
Company Limited (“Starry”)

FABS R B B R 2R A AN B AR IR BE B R ST AT
B4 HIFG18,684,000% T (—F——14F :
18,505,000 7T) ©

RZZE——F+—A=Z+H ~&EE
BRANAHKE —HB2EHB ARE—
W RIAS15%KE - REAARK
13,677,000(#72,202,000%7T) * Et AR
AIPAEEE A AR AR FENE20%382£21.5% ©

A | Report 2012
100 “=——#=q

HERENT RS
21.5% 20% Production of bulk pharmaceuticals
and intermediates

Included in the cost of interest in an associate is goodwill of
US$18,684,000 (2011: US$18,505,000) arising on acquisition of
Starry.

On 26 November 2012, the Group further acquired 1.5% equity
interest in Starry through the acquisition of a wholly-owned
subsidiary from CIH, at a consideration of RMB13,677,000
(approximately US$2,202,000), and the Company increased its
equity interest in an associate from 20% to 21.5% accordingly.
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20. REE QT RS (F)

21.

FEM (&)

BRAKEREARNTHEENEESS

20. Interest in an Associate (Continued)

Group (Continued)
Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

A associate is set out below:
—E——F —E——F
2012 2011
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
BEE Total assets 131,782 115,042
BEEE Total liabilities (75,634) (67,091)
BESE Net assets 56,148 47,951
AEEEEEEFE Group's share of net assets 13,347 9,179
WA Revenue 97,593 78,542
F A T Profit for the year 7,579 10,662
REEEEHE AR Group's share of post-tax profit from
BrifI& R T an associate 1,402 1,941
FE 21. Inventories
REH Group
—E-——fF —T——%F
2012 2011
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
EAT Raw materials 3,650 3,840
EES Work-in-progress 2,907 1,996
UK Finished goods 5,266 3,740
11,823 9,576
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22. ESZRHEHMEKRRE 22. Trade and Other Receivables
rEH Group
—E-——F =%
2012 2011
FER FET
US$°000 Us$'000
B 5 e ZIE Trade receivables 33,862 28,665
A BZEWHKIBRERE  Less: provision for impairment of
trade receivables (1,903) (1,993)
31,959 26,672
FEW R R Bills receivables 14,556 10,438
5 FE W R TE & e W R IR Trade and bills receivables 46,515 37,110
TE R8BI E A e Y5k IE Prepayments and other receivables 8,637 5,106
55,152 42,216
EERE B LEMEWSIBENIERE The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and
EHNFEEEE o other receivables approximate their fair values.
REENRELSAMERTPIEHTEHIOE The Group has a policy of allowing an average credit period of 90
1208(=F——F : 90H ) W{=EH] - to 120 days to its customers (2011: 90 days).
RIBERZ0E  BHEHRESAEHILE  AEH Based on the invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade and
B SEWZEREREZE (NGB RES bills receivables (net of impairment losses) of the Group as of the
B)BREOITT ¢ end of the reporting date is as follows:
—E——F —E——F
2012 2011
FErx FET
US$'000 Us$'000
90HZKAT 90 days or below 41,841 36,144
912180H 91-180 days 4,670 958
181&2365H 181-365 days 4 8
46,515 37,110
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102 Arpuitemes



A4 B8 B AR B PR A A
Lansen Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited

B H5 R MRt

Notes to the Financial Statements

HEZZ——F+=A=1+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012

22,

ESRHMEWRFIEE)

AE®EE)

AEBEMNE ZEWFIBEHIEERAE
3,302,000 7T ( —ZZ ——4F : 966,0003
TO)REMEIE - R EREUGRIERN S B A
EE A EREERLBEREEIRE® -
ZEFREL LI ER GBI
XPBER  BEATLR  ARAESR
B AR EAEETESEAED  BEH
KRR 2EUE - AfmBERZEE
MIEHRERE - NEBUWERZIEH
BEEAERR -

AEBEEBHETRRENE S EKGRIE
BRERDHTIAT ¢

22,

Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Included in the Group’s trade receivables balance are debtors with
aggregate carrying amount of US$3,302,000 (2011: US$966,000)
which are past due as at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. These relate to a number
of independent customers of whom there is no recent history of
default. Based on past experience, the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary
in respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

The Group's ageing analysis of past due but not impaired trade
receivables is as follows:

—E-—fF —E——fF

2012 2011

FErR FET

US$'000 Us$'000

BHA1ZE90H Past due over 1-90 days 3,298 958
#EA91%275H Past due over 91-275 days 4 8
3,302 966

REEE S RYWSRRREREEE T

Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

=F-=F —T——F

2012 2011

FErR FET

US$'000 Us$'000

R—HA—H At 1 January 1,993 1,811

PE 5 S EE Exchange adjustment 18 97
B S W RIER] Provision for impairment of

AR trade receivables 126 85

BETAI R E mMMiEaE£%  Amounts written off as uncollectible (234) -

R+—A=+—H At 31 December 1,903 1,993
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HEZZ——F+=A=1+—HIEFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012

22,

B 5 Kk E A R E (&)

REM(F)

BB 5 R UGR IR R R B BB (E R R E
B 5 & IR B o (B Bl R (B O FE UK
AT EHEAMBRENTFAR - BEHE
BBy EWGGIRTE R T @ o AR5 [ I
Fhek SHEERET R AR o

R-ZE——F+-_A=+—8  x@Efizx
RNERE 5 W GIE A28,657,000% T
—ZE——% :25706,000%7T)  ZEE

2 FEMR IR B R 2 50 B0 8 R SRR 8RN &
FAR -

R-ZB——FRAFE  AEEESEHE
BUAREAZT2BRENDBYEBRERE -
W EW IR R NEE AR KR D B
B R FIA - 7 BIRNE © BB IR
BIFTSFIE7 9% (= F——%F : 13.5%)&f
B BEREREESMBEL - Bt - A
SEAEGIRZREEBBREEMN TN
[2\Bg2 ©

MR AEBRBARERZIENERILD
EBKEER MR SGETFEERE
ETERIEIRR I EREREENRTE °
R-EBE——F+-_A=1+—8 " EBKEE
7,765,000 7T ( —ZF——4 : 961,000%
TLBENAEEMIERRERER B
HEEAZXEETSMMEE - RS M
BHEEEAEEERME (ME26)st
AEER  BEEERIVEREESAEE
BENeHEENMERE NZTE—=F
+ZA=+—H EBEERBEAEAR
7,765,000% 7L ( =& ——4 : 961,0003
TT) e
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22. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Group (Continued)

The above provision for impairment of trade receivables is
a provision for individually impaired trade receivables. The
individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers that
were in financial difficulties and only a portion of the receivables is
expected to be recovered. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

As at 31 December 2012, trade receivables of US$28,657,000
(2011: US$25,706,000) were neither past due nor impaired. These
related to a large number of diversified customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

During 2011 and this year, the Group discounted part of its bills
receivables with full recourse to financial institutions. In the event
of default by the bills receivables, the Group is obliged to pay the
financial institutions the amount in default. Interest is charged at
7.9% (2011: 13.5%) on the proceeds received from the financial
instructions until the date the bills receivables pay. The Group is
therefore exposed to the risks of credit losses and late payment in
respect of the discounted bills.

The discounting transactions do not meet the requirements in
IAS 39 for de-recognition of financial assets as the Group retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the
discounted bills receivables. At 31 December 2012, bills receivables
of US$7,765,000 (2011: US$961,000) continue to be recognised
in the Group's financial statements even though they have been
legally transferred to the financial institutions. The proceeds
of the discounting transactions are included in borrowings as
asset-backed financing (note 26) until the bills receivables are
collected or the Group settles any losses suffered by the financial
institutions. At 31 December 2012, the asset-backed financing
liability amounted to US$7,765,000 (2011: US$961,000).
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22,

B 5 Kk E A R E (&)

FEM (&)
HRERZERECAZEE T RIS - &
AEEEREETREEENEE -

NRZE——F+_-_A=+—0  EFEAEA
3,291,000 (ZF——F  #)WETH
W RIEE ARG IRITEE - B
REBDHIR-_E—=FRA-+NBER
ZE-=FRA=T—HIH  WiZ1.8%
R EF RGN F3.5%E4.4% ) FF| K5t

B o
o

RZFBE——F+-A=+—H ' AREH
HihEWFETS2HKE - WERE
FREKREERRKRAERZS R
T8 5 (B B4 ##5635,000% T ( - — — 4 -
994,000%7T) ° NEE W EGRZ EHE T
BT

REBEADREWSIRH R EREEEIT

22. Trade and Other Receivables (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Because the bills receivables have been transferred to the financial
institutions legally, the Group did not have the authority to
determine the disposition of the bills receivables.

As at 31 December 2012, certain other receivables with a carrying
amount of US$3,291,000 (2011: nil) were pledged to secure bank
borrowings. The receivables will mature on 24 May 2013 and 31
May 2013 and carry interests at 1.8% per annum and ranging
from 3.5% to 4.4% per annum respectively.

As at 31 December 2012, a provision for impairment of other
receivables of US$635,000 (2011: US$994,000) was recognised
for certain long outstanding receivables as these receivables are
not expected to be fully recovered. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

Movement on the Group’s provision for impairment of other
receivables is as follows:

—E——F —E——F

2012 2011

FER F=7T

US$'000 US$'000

Rn—A—H At 1 January 994 936

PE S EE Exchange adjustment 10 49

HAbEWGRIE R E (Reversal of)/Provision for impairment

($[m),/ Bl of other receivables 1) 9

BT AU M £ % Amounts written off as uncollectible (368) -

R+—-—A=+—8 At 31 December 635 994
BRESzEI 0 Pt EEW R R Except for the amount impaired, none of the above assets is either

B LB ABRNESREEDIRL
ERFKECEARUGIRE R -

past due or impaired. The financial assets included in the above
balances related to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default.
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23. RERBLEEY
RERRESENRFATHS -

23. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:

TEH RATE

Group Company
=F-=F —FF =B-=F =—TF
2012 2011 2012 2011
FEn FET FEx FET
US$'000 Us$'000 US$'000 USs$'000
B MIRITES Cash and bank balances 19,706 22,878 3 17
B BEEMERTITESK Less: pledged bank deposits (8,325) (7,286) - -
WENMIBLEEY  Cash and cash equivalents 11,381 15,592 3 17

R RBTESKBRERRITLRFRRERIUAR
REBEAE=EA KA THERRITH
Ko RITMEREE B RITERFHIZF
AR R - EHRTEFRFEARITLR
T 35 I R BREX A 2, o

RZFB-—ZFF+ZA=+—HRZF——
FHZ A=+ AMDEMBRITEREAR
SERBSETRITAE - RITER (M
26) R e R 4R (P 52 28) T IR RO IR1T 17

=+
e

R-ZE——F+-A=1+—H XAE£EK
e MIBITHE#HE1518,098,000E L (=F
——4%F 1 22,199,000370) MIRTT 45 &R - 3
HEHRUARE(TARE DEHERTFRFE
RISRTT - ARBWIEABREBNE -
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Cash and bank balances comprise cash at banks and in hand,
and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less. Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposits rates. Short-term bank deposits are placed
with banks and earn interest at market interest rates.

Pledged bank deposits represent the Group’s bank deposits
pledged to secure certain banking facilities, bank borrowings (note
26) and bills payables (note 28) as of 31 December 2012 and 31
December 2011.

As at 31 December 2012, included in cash and bank balances of
the Group was US$18,098,000 (2011: US$22,199,000) of bank
balances denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") placed with banks in
the PRC. RMB is not a freely convertible currency.
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24. R 24. Share Capital
BREBEE &8
Number of shares Amount
F=
Us$'000
FIMEEO.01ETTHE @AY Ordinary shares of US$0.01 each
JETE Authorised:
RZE——F—H—1 At 1 January 2011, 31 December
—_E——F+_H 2011 and 31 December 2012
=t—BRZZE—ZF
+=—A=+—H 20,000,000,000 200,000
EEITRERE Issued and fully paid:
RZE——F—H—1 " At 1 January 2011, 31 December
—E——F+=H 2011 and 31 December 2012
=t—BR=FT-—=F
+=—A=+—H 415,000,000 4,150
25. f#fE 25. Reserves
IR EEBEEILERNEERNEEE - The share premium represents the excess over the nominal value
for shares allotted.
EERBEZBPREEEENRE - B The statutory reserve represents appropriation of profits of the
BB ARMRFDEETA DIRHEH S PRC subsidiaries to non-distributable reserve fund account as
iR o required by the relevant PRC statue.
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25. f#E(E) 25. Reserves (Continued)
INEEEIRIRE I BN B AT REN The foreign exchange reserve represents exchange differences
FE 3,258 o arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
subsidiaries.
AT Company
IR 5 8 R EE #Et
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
FET FET FET
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
RZZT——F—H—H At1January 2011 68,475 (797) 67,678
P (BtEE13) Dividends (note 13) (10,145) - (10,145)
HEA NETR S Transaction with owners (10,145) - (10,145)
FAEE Loss for the year - (425) (425)
Hib 2w Other comprehensive income - - _
FRNEERE LT Total comprehensive income
for the year - (425) (425)
R=—Z——F At 31 December 2011
+=A=+—~H 58,330 (1,222) 57,108
P& B (PH3E13) Dividends (note 13) (8,762) - (8,762)
BEA NETR S Transaction with owners (8,762) - (8,762)
FAEE Loss for the year - (374) (374)
Hib 2wz Other comprehensive income - - _
FAEERRERE Total comprehensive income
for the year - (374) (374)
RN-—B——F At 31 December 2012
+=A=+—H 49,568 (1,596) 47,972
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26. BE 26. Borrowings
KEE Group
—E-——F =%
2012 2011
FER FET
US$'000 Us$'000
EBIRITIEE Fixed-rate bank borrowings 10,587 7,150
FEIRITEE Variable-rate bank borrowings 23,903 20,272
BEERRE Assets-backed financing 7,765 961
42,255 28,383
Vg Secured 34,395 20,622
I Unsecured 7,860 7,761
42,255 28,383
—E-——fF =%
2012 2011
FER F=T
Us$°000 Us$'000
RITIEE - Bank borrowings:
19FR Within one year 34,490 18,265
Epks In the second year - 8,037
$E3FF5F In the third to fifth year - 1,120
ARRFRNEHEE Wholly repayable within five years 34,490 27,422
R—FERI BN EEERRE  Assets-backed financing due within
one year 7,765 961
R FEAREN B ERFIE Less: amount included in current
liabilities (42,255) (19,226)
STASERB A ERRIE Amount included in non-current
liabilities - 9,157
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26.

EE (&)

AEE(F)

MEBERETTETEARMFE NEER
7T E 1,290,000 €L (=ZF——F : &) -
MARBEEERBERERERE R
;o BERITIEEREARSEE - LER
—FRIBEEESHRERKEEKRZ
IRITIEE ENEARDERE  BEEM
EMOTERIN —F B E ©

26. Borrowings (Continued)

Group (Continued)

The current liabilities include bank borrowings of US$1,290,000
(2011: nil) that are scheduled to repay within two years. They
are classified as current liabilities as the related loan agreements
contain a repayment on demand clause. None of the portion of
these bank borrowings, due for repayment after one year which
contain a repayment on demand clause and that is classified as
current liability, is expected to be settled within one year.

—E——F —ET——%F
2012 2011
FEx FET
US$'000 USs$'000
& - Represented by:
PN =S Borrowings in RMB 18,833 13171
ELEE Borrowings in US$ 8,800 7,390
BT(ATHEE Borrowings in Hong Kong Dollars
("HK$") 14,622 7,822
42,255 28,383
—E——F —ET——%F
2012 2011
FEx FET
US$'000 USs$'000
ERRFERNE Effective interest rate per annum:
RITEE Bank borrowings 3.90% 4.62%
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26.

BE(H)
FEM (&)
AEBEDEME TRITHER - HpEUR
H - YE - BEMREEEN T HmBEER
o NESAKERITHENLRITEE -
ZEFCEMBEER RS A BHREEDT -

—F+=HA=+—HI1EFJE For the year ended 31 December 2012

26. Borrowings (Continued)
Group (Continued)
The Group had pledged certain bank deposits, other receivables,
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land lease payment to
secure the banking facilities and bank borrowings of the Group.
The carrying values of these assets pledged at the reporting date
are as follows:

—E-—F %

2012 2011

FErx F=T

Us$'000 Us$'000

M BE N ERE Property, plant and equipment 12,778 7,679
FEft L E R E Prepaid land lease payment 2,058 1,271
BIIRIRITIERC Pledged bank deposits 8,325 7,286
2 LI E 4th FE W F0E Pledged other receivables 3,291 -
26,452 16,236

EE IR ITE E7,860,000F (=T ——
£ : 6,323,000 70 ) UAEBE W B A FME
ER-

BEERBERTHABEBREEERIZE3
TR ILHERRENRER ZAESHRE
A - HEEREEFAE S REMEY
IR (FIFE22) - ZEREER—FAREE
WANRBEE -

The unsecured bank borrowings of US$7,860,000 (2011:
US$6,323,000) were guaranteed by subsidiaries of the Group.

The asset-backed financing represents the amount of financing
obtained in factoring transactions which do not meet the de-
recognition requirements in IAS 39. The corresponding financial
assets are included in trade and other receivables (note 22). These
borrowings matured within one year and were repayable in RMB.
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27.

ELEMRIBEAE 27. Deferred Tax Liabilities
rEH Group
—F—=F —T—F
2012 2011
FEr FET
US$'000 Us$'000
m—H—H At 1 January 181 394
TEHIFTIS R Withholding income tax
—FRXA — Paid during the year - 213)
W+ZHA=+—H At 31 December 181 181

BECEMERE B 22T NF—A—
B - BB B A R AT EE F = R
R B BBNTEINR - SRE B HRER AL
Rk BB A F1#933,883,000E (= F
——%F 1 21,601,000570) R H MATELE
WEREBEERECHERE  REER
AEEA TR EENBORRE - BZ
LERERAIRE TS A A T8 L AS R A -

ZNAS
RZFB-—ZFF+ZA=F+—HR=F——
F+ZA=1+—0  AREALETMEX

L -
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Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared in respect of profits earned by the PRC subsidiaries
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of temporary differences attributable to accumulated profits
of the PRC subsidiaries amounting to US$33,883,000 (2011:
US$21,601,000) as the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Company
As at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2011, the Company
did not have any material temporary differences.
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28. EZRHEMEMNFIE
#EH

28.

Trade and Other Payables
Group

—E-——F =%

2012 2011

FEx FET

US$'000 Us$'000

B 5 et A Trade payables 10,876 8,568
ANE S Bills payables - 632
g S EMNFUA M BN EE Trade and bills payables 10,876 9,200
Eo e 5RI8 K FE T FRIE Other payables and accruals 9,179 6,038
20,055 15,238

REZXZAH  BERSEHL - AEE
ME P RN RIARENRERE DT

Based on invoice date, the ageing analysis of the trade and bills
payables of the Group as at the end of the reporting date is as

follows:
—EB-=fF —E——fF
2012 2011
FErR FET
US$°000 US$'000
90H AT 90 days or below 7,610 5,689
91HZE180H 91-180 days 784 1,231
181HZE365H 181-365 days 1,184 1,755
#RiB365H Over 365 days 1,298 525
10,876 9,200

WN_ZE——F+_A=+—8  ENEE
632,000 T A B IR R 1T F 20 /4R 18 (B

£23)

EERREIREAMENFANEKRER

HAHERS -

As at 31 December 2011, bills payables of US$632,000 was

secured by the pledged bank deposits (note 23).

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and

other payables approximate their fair values.
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28. ESRHMBEMAKIEE) 28. Trade and Other Payables (Continued)
AT Company
—E-=F —E——%F
2012 2011
FER FET
US$°000 Us$'000
PESHRRIE Accruals 178 166
29. BAFSEIE 29. Financial Commitments
R TH N RIE Operating lease commitment
REH Group
—B-=fF =%
2012 2011
FErR FET
US$'000 USs$'000

RIBE A HEE SO0 Future minimum rental payable under

RRFEENEE non-cancellable operating lease are

O as follows:

1A Within one year 199 229

FE2ESF In the second to fifth years 121 198

320 427

RNEBPKEROERE TYWE - AW The Group leases certain properties under operating leases. The
ShA=—FE(—T——4F : =) O RE leases run for an initial period of three years (2011: three years),
B E S A EENAEBETFTEAHRTENE with options to renew the lease terms at the expiry dates or at
HRIBE A - ZEHAOBTBIEEM days as mutually agreed between the Group and the respective
s RFEE - landlords. None of these leases includes any contingent rentals.
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29. BN ()

29. Financial Commitments (Continued)

BETRHRIEE) Operating lease commitment (Continued)
AT Company
—E——F —ET——%F
2012 2011
FErR FET
US$'000 us$'000
RIE A RUEEEEHAR Future minimum rental payable under
RRFIEERER non-cancellable operating lease are
s as follows:
1A Within one year 2 5
FE2ESF In the second to fifth years - 2
2 7
B AR Capital commitment
rEE Group
—E-—F —T—4%F
2012 2011
FER F=
Us$'000 Us$'000
EHERETHIH Capital commitments authorised and
BAAENE - contracted for:
EIVEE Intangible assets 2,520 2,363
RERRE Construction and equipment 86 2,788
2,606 5,151

RZE——F+-_A=+—HBKk=_F——
F+ZA=+—H ' KARIBEEAREIE -

The Company had no capital commitments as at 31 December
2012 and 31 December 2011.
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30. AERE 30. Risk Management

116

AEEmEREEEEMRNERPHNZIA
MR - ANEE )RR EEREE R
# o WEEBFETAF  BERETEERAR
SENEHETHRERE -

EERR
AEENEERREERSE S EKK
- ARBRRR NS HEENBRE
SEMHERAERE - e EEEE
BRI B A5 T B AT B IR 0 3P
CH

RREEERR  AEEERECIVE
ERE  HEKEKAEECEERE &
BTN A EEBIE - UBARRERE
TR B AR -

RZE——F+_-_A=+—H0 BHEK
BRI % (2T ——F : 27%)K
BAEEZAZFE -

ARRNHESREVBERMELNER
R o

nBEeEERRER  FRUFHEA
HIRTT

hEES AR
AAREECRAENRBESRRE
BEENERAEENE -+ RHES
RABESEREL -

AEEBBERTEHE - RITRBN
BEERE  HEERRBRALERRSR
EMEHEREERABNIRBERLAE
ERBETER

TRAMAEEFTESRABNHRTS
WEIHFFE - TRIODBRIBEAREAIKE KR
EFRFAHNERABRMARSRE
w3 RBEEME » TWIRITREAREE
TTEEAER - IR B REERRNRITE
P ARFRREEBE - BT ESR
BENIHASIIZE BEEK B HRR -
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The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks which
result from its operating and investing activities. The Group’s
risk management is coordinated at its headquarters in close
cooperation with the directors and focuses on actively securing
the Group's short to medium term cash flows.

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade
receivables. The amounts presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position are net of provision for impairment of trade
receivables, estimated by the Group’s management based on
prior experience and their assessment of the current economic
environment.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group
has formulated a credit policy and delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts.

As of 31 December 2012, 21% (2011: 27%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group's largest customer.

The Company is also exposed to credit risk arising from the
provision of financial guarantees.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties
are reputable banks.

Liquidity risk
The directors of the Company have built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a repayment
on demand clause are included in the earliest time band regardless
of the probability of the banks choosing to exercise their rights.
The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are
based on the agreed repayment dates.
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30. EREE(E)
REBE S ER ()

TRESHNERAERERE - EFER
RIZFBNEFENBERT - RBREH

BRREMROMETE -

30. Risk Management (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate at the end of the reporting

period.
rEH Group
—E—_F
2012
1FR 1225 2855 e
Between Between
Within one and two and
one year two years five years Total
FEx FER FER FER
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000
TER= Borrowings 43,114 - - 43,114
B SRENFIER Trade and
S bills payables 10,876 - - 10,876
EAth T FRIA Other payables and accruals
FEEHRIE 9,179 - - 9,179
63,169 - - 63,169
rEH Group
—F——F
2011
1R 122 255 #Et
Between Between
Within one and two and
one year two years five years Total
FET FET FET FET
Us$'000 Us$'000 Us$'000 USs$'000
BE Borrowings 20,162 8,336 1,172 29,670
B SENFER Trade and
JER =& bills payables 9,200 - - 9,200
HAthfETFRIA R Other payables and accruals
FEEHRIA 6,038 - - 6,038
35,400 8,336 1,172 44,908
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30. AEE(E)
REIESERE(E)
REE(E)
M AR Bk EE G R R R TIE 'R A Ll
EIEBD TR 1F AN |REEE - RZT—=
FH+ZA=+—H  ZSRTEBERTER
R4 4858 51,290,000 7T © K EEAREER
MEARRIE - ESHEERITTIARAIEERIT
FEEFERENFER - EEHEZER
TEEBERHERRERTRRBEER
WEAMEREERBBER - BN - ~&
MFIBIR S R AATESE,347,000% 7T °

30. Risk Management (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are included
in the “within one year” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2012, the aggregate undiscounted principal
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to US$1,290,000.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors believe that such bank borrowings will be repaid within
two years after the end of the reporting period in accordance with
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. At
that time, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will
amount to US$1,347,000.

ARNF Company
—E-—F
2012
151 Mt
Within one year Total
FEx FEx
US$'000 Us$'000
et oA Accruals 178 178
—T—%
2011
18R wmEt
Within one year Total
FET FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
FEEt R IE Accruals 166 166

fie )% B2 B E IR S IR P E U F) X
st Bl EXSIETASRAaEIRTIA
FIEESlRIBEReB#H -

AARBEMBAFMEERMERHENEGL
B 5 HE1R /16,540,000 E 0 ( — B ——F -
11,252,0003€70) ° BUNEZ AL @ $R1T
TRATBERZERERA N AARRHRE
SR 2 SN/ D= R/NCT R S NET - F S
EERITEE - At ARBWERZE
ERBETHETEHEE -
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The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments
for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to change if
changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of
interest rates determined at the end of the reporting period.

The contractual financial guarantees provided by the Company
in respect of the borrowing facilities of its subsidiaries are
US$16,540,000 (2011: US$11,252,000). As assessed by the
directors, it is not probable that the bank would claim the
Company for losses in respect of the guarantee contracts. In
addition, it is not probable that the subsidiaries of the Company
would default repayment of bank borrowings. Accordingly, no
provision for the Company’s obligation under guarantees has
been made.
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30. Risk Management (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal transactional currency exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of the financial assets and liabilities held
by the Group’s subsidiaries are denominated in the respective
functional currency of such subsidiaries.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt obligations with floating
interest rates. The interest rate and terms of repayment of bank
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 26. The Group
currently does not have an interest rate hedging policy.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments at the
end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis
is prepared assuming the amount of liability outstanding at the
end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis point increase or decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in
interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points lower/higher and all
other variables were held constant, the Group'’s:

o Profit for the year ended 31 December 2012 and retained
profits as at 31 December 2012 would increase/decrease by
US$120,000 (2011: increase/decrease by US$98,000). This is
mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest rates
on its variable rate bank borrowings; and

o The Group's equity as at 31 December 2012 would increase/
decrease by US$120,000 (2011: increase/decrease by
US$98,000).

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has increased during
the current year mainly due to the increase in variable rate bank
borrowings.
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30. Risk Management (Continued)
Summary of financial assets and liabilities by category
The carrying amounts presented in the statements of financial
position relate to the following categories of financial assets and
financial liabilities.

rEH Group
—E-—F —ET—%F
2012 2011
FEx FET
Us$'000 Us$'000
SHMEE Financial assets
B ERGRIE Loans and receivables:
B 5 R HAMEWRIE Trade and other receivables 53,665 40,153
DRI TIER Pledged bank deposits 8,325 7,286
HERIREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 11,381 15,592
73,371 63,031
Eo: =i Financial liabilities
TSRO BRR SR B (& ¢ Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
BE Borrowings 42,255 28,383
B hHEMENZE Trade and other payables 20,055 15,238
62,310 43,621
ANF Company
—E——F —T——F
2012 2011
FEx FE
Us$'000 US$'000
EREE Financial assets
Bk EWGRIE Loans and receivables:
WM A EIRUE Amount due from a subsidiary 27,248 36,358
RekREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 3 17
27,251 36,375
S@Aans Financial liabilities
RS AT BRI B (& ¢ Financial liabilities at amortised cost:
FEETRIE Accruals 178 166
178 166
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30. AEE(E) 30. Risk Management (Continued)

BEXRER

AEFMERHEAN  UBERAESENEE
AIFELE  RNEZE(CEFEERT
B AR AR AL - ANEBE IS
BERAFESHIFTTE o

e Bk mi

A E A RIS BIE A (BE 26
HENEE)  Be RETRBRAATE
B RR(BADRTER - HERR
ZiiH) o

AEEZEEEHERBETEATHE -
REBREEN NS M AEREENRR
TR BREARBAUAFLFE - BER
HABREARRE  AEEFREHERN T
RO EHE RREARTRER - #17
MR RHEEERE -

REHROFEERBELRMT

Capital management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged
from prior years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes
the borrowings disclosed in note 26, cash and bank balances and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
capital, reserves and retained earnings.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to its overall
financing structure. The Group manages the capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net gearing ratio at the end of the reporting date was as
follows:

—E-—fF —E——fF

2012 2011

FEx FET

US$'000 Us$'000

BB (ME26) Borrowings (note 26) 42,255 28,383

i IR MRTT4ER(MIEE23) Less: Cash and bank balances (note 23) (19,706) (22,878)
A BRI E A EYGRIA Less: Pledged other receivables (note 22)

(MF7%22) (3,291) -

B FEE Net debt 19,258 5,505

s Equity 105,403 99,340

FEERSLE R Net debt to equity ratio 18.3% 5.5%
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31. BEARS 31.

BRI PIBE T FE L BB H IR 5 MM R
S FRERRETETT MRS ¢

Related Party Transactions
Apart from those transactions and balances with related parties
disclosed elsewhere, the following transactions were carried out

with related parties during the year:

=F-=F —T——F
2012 2011
BaE FER FET
Notes US$'000 Us$'000
BRRZEKB AR Rental fees paid to fellow 0)
HesA subsidiaries 13 1M
ENRRMEAR Consultancy fee paid to a fellow (ii)
BRER subsidiary - 51
gt /N] ey Acquisition of additional interest (iii)
FEIMER in an associate 2,202 -
) BAEBEEHREEMFOMRAE (i)  Fees paid to fellow subsidiaries for rental of office premises,

¥ OBEREREHSMME R B
REIEMNMER - ZERX B L™
RAEIMAERENFEBRER S
RBiE ETRAIE14A33R) K E2E
R o

(i) FRAAREERERERREMRERR (i)

MEBARZNHER - ZXZEK L
TRAUFEUAERTHREEZ ZFEIR
B TR AE 14A.33G) KE 2 E

ﬁo
(i) BB AREIIMEZMARZR (iii)

B AR ARE - AR TR A
FIA07TEFTATNZZBRAE D
RS 1% BIRMR5% BREBB
1,000,000/ 7T + BUIRIE AR AIE
14AE - ZRHERNE DB BER
5 AET EMRAETHERRAE
IRIE - WER BB RAER
e ARABBETRIE EMRAE
14AZERIFETEIRTE ©

RRBEFERE  WLBERRHTIRIE
BRERRE—RABEBPET -

hotel and meeting room for daily operation of the Group.
These transactions constituted continuing connected
transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules but were fully exempted under Rule 14A.33(3) of the
Listing Rules.

Fees paid to a fellow subsidiary for consultancy services
provided to the Group. This transaction constituted
connected transactions as defined under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules but was fully exempted under Rule 14A.33(3)
of the Listing Rules.

Consideration paid to a fellow subsidiary for acquisition
of additional interest in an associate. As the applicable
percentage ratios as defined in Rule 14.07 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the transaction are greater than 1% but
less than 5% and the consideration exceeds HK$1,000,000,
this transaction constitutes a connected transaction of the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is
subject to the reporting and announcement requirements
but is exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that the above
related party transactions were conducted on normal commercial

terms and in the ordinary and usual course of business.

TEERABHEN IO RELN T
ARFEFHEHE -
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Remuneration for key management personnel represents amounts
paid to the Company'’s directors as disclosed in note 10.
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32.
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32. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the

Company

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2012 and 31 December 2011 are as follows:

ESLUNN
A& BRIRBRRE
£8 RYBER 4% EMERFE RRARRENERER TEER
Particulars of
Country/Place of issued and fully
incorporation/  paid share capital/ Effective interest
Name establishment  registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
—E-—f C—T——%F
2012 2011
EREAER
Interests held directly
REBEERARAR EBEIHS 29491360 BREE 100% 100% REER
1ETHEER
Lansen Pharmaceutical The BVI 29,491,360 ordinary Investment holding
Holdings Limited shares of US$1 each
HEREES
Interests held indirectly
REBRBRRA B0 TREE VBT E B 100% 100% AR
Point Kin International Hong Kong 1 ordinary share of HK$1 Investment holding
Limited
RERE(FE) BB 100G REE AT 100% 100% REER
BRAF Lk
Lansen Investments Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares of Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited HK$1 each
AYIBAE e (Pieta) AEK#29,498,0007T 100% 100% BEXK
Shenzhen Lansen The PRC (note a)  RMB29,498,000 Pharmaceutical business
ERVE o B (fff7Eh) AR 236,000,0007T 100% 100% BEEK
Ningbo Liwah The PRC (note b)  RMB236,000,000 Pharmaceutical business
R EE YRR o B8 (Pl &Eb) AE#28,000,0007T 100% 100% BEXK
BRAF
Ningbo Liwah Plant Extraction  The PRC (note b)  RMB28,000,000 Pharmaceutical business
Technology Limited
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32. AATFEMBATFE(E) 32. Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries of the
Company (Continued)

a1 ERTRBERE
28 BRYBR 1% SMERFE ARARBENERER TEXK
Particulars of
Country/Place of issued and fully

incorporation/  paid share capital/ Effective interest
Name establishment  registered capital held by the Company Principal activities
“g--f —T——F
2012 2011
ERBERERRARF o (B Ec) AR#35,000,0007T 100% 100% BEE
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical The PRC (note )  RMB35,000,000 Pharmaceutical business
Company Limited
SMEAEBENVEXBRRE  HE(MTa) AR#3,500,0007T 100% 100% BB
Bozhou Lansen Herbal The PRC (notea) RMB3,500,000 Pharmaceutical business
Industry Limited
ERPAEBENMRAERAT  PE(MED) AR #1,000,0007T 100% - BRELE
Ningbo Lansen Pharmaceutical The PRC (note b)  RMB1,000,000 Pharmaceutical business
Technology Company
Limited
B Notes
(a) RHBIRK AERAR (@)  Established as a limited liability company in the PRC
(b) RAREBIR L AIINEBEERE (b)  Established as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise in the PRC
(© MBI AFINEGERE (c) Established as a sino-foreign equity joint venture in the PRC
EREFINEFRATETEREHEER The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
HEENAKBEMNBAR - ES=RAE IR opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or assets
HEAMMBARFEEENFRBNILE of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
FAR MM AR TERERES o None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end

of the year.
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